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MYTHOLOGICAL
SIGNIFICANCE
According to the Himvatakhanda, Bhaleshwor Mahadev manifested at the sacred 

site where Satidevi�s bhala (forehead) descended following her divine departure. 

Satidevi, the consort of Lord Shiva, offered herself into the sacred fire during her 

father Daksha Prajapati�s yagna after he publicly disrespected Lord Shiva in the 

presence of numerous gods and goddesses.

Overwhelmed by grief, Lord Shiva carried Satidevi�s lifeless form across the world 

for a prolonged period, immersed in deep sorrow. During this time, several Shakti 

Peethas (centers of divine energy) were established at the locations where 

different parts of Satidevi�s body fell. The temple of Bhaleshwor Mahadev was 

later constructed at the very site where her forehead descended, marking it as a 

place of profound spiritual significance.

The legend of Bhaleshwor Mahadev is also associated with a Gandharva named 

Sumukha. As per the sacred lore, Sumukha committed a grave act of impropriety 

toward Rambha, a celestial nymph who had recently retired from her duties in 

Indra�s heavenly court. As a consequence, Rambha pronounced a curse upon 

Sumukha, requiring him to relinquish his celestial abode and reside on Earth.

While wandering the mortal realm under this affliction, Sumukha encountered the 

sage Galab, who guided him toward repentance and spiritual purification. Acting 

upon the sage�s counsel, Sumukha devoted himself to daily prayers and penance 

before Bhaleshwor Mahadev. In due course, Lord Shiva was pleased by his 

devotion and granted him forgiveness, allowing him to reunite with Rambha and 

accept a revered place among the attendants of Bhaleshwor Mahadev.

Another account from the Himvatakhanda speaks of a Brahmin named Birupas, 

who suffered from a severe affliction as a result of actions from a previous life. In 

his suffering, Birupas encountered the sage Nemuni, who advised him to 

undertake a pilgrimage to sixty-four Shiva Lingas as a means of atonement. 

During this sacred journey, Birupas worshipped at Bhaleshwor Mahadev, where it 

is believed he attained spiritual renewal.

It is widely held that devotees who offer prayers at Bhaleshwor Mahadev 

experience the fulfillment of their sincere wishes and, in the afterlife, attain 

Shivaloka, the divine realm of Lord Shiva.
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ABOUT US
Chandragiri Hills is a 

stunning location located 

to the southwest of the 

Kathmandu Valley. It rises 

to 2551 meters & offers 

spectacular panoramic 

views of Kathmandu Valley 

and the Himalayan ranges, 

from Annapurna to 

Everest. The lush green 

flora adds to the beauty of 

the pristine landscape, 

making it a must-visit 

destination.



BOTTOM STATION
The Bottom Station of the Cable Car is situated at an 

elevation of 1,596 meters above sea level. It provides 

ample parking facilities, accommodating up to 200 

cars and 500 motorcycles, ensuring ease and 

convenience for visitors.

A beautifully designed water fountain warmly 

welcomes guests throughout the year, enhancing 

the charm of the entrance in every season. The area 

also offers a variety of dining options, making it an 

ideal place to relax and enjoy a meal, whether for 

breakfast, lunch, or dinner.

CABLE CAR
Experience the hidden charm of Chandragiri by 

taking a breathtaking 9-to-13-minute journey from 

Godam-Thankot up through the hillside that reaches 

high above the city. The 2.5 km long car ensures a 

smooth and safe journey while giving you an 

up-close view of the untainted wilderness. Cable 

cars by Doppelmayr, were manufactured in 2014 

with 41 cabs, of which 38 are passenger-carrying 

and 3 are used for goods and maintenance. Each 

cab can accommodate 8 passengers/640kgs.

TOP STATION
The Top Station of the Cable Car is located at an 

elevation of 2,520 meters above sea level. Upon 

arrival, visitors are rewarded with breathtaking 

views of snow-clad mountain ranges, the 

Kathmandu Valley, and the surrounding community 

forest, offering a truly scenic and tranquil 

experience.

Along the pathway leading to the temple area, 

several grocery and souvenir shops are available for 

visitors' convenience, also featuring a range of 

adventure activities, a children�s playground, and live 

food counters.

VIEW TOWER / FINE DINING
Constructed at the astounding height of 2550 

meters above sea level, this View Tower is ideally 

located for viewing the panoramic Himalayan 

ranges from Annapurna to Everest along with 

beautiful snow clad mountains. The amazing view 

from here would be the community forest and 

valleys alongside. The restaurant on a Fine Dining 

concept just below the View Tower with 80 seats 

capacity serves you with delicious delicacies. 

Further down at the bottom the available food court 

serves you with buffet meal along with ale-carte 

menus.
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AMPHITHEATRE
This open air venue theater is used just to relax and 

for some chit chats. Several kinds of activities can 

be carried out to cater as to the requirement of 

guest needs.

CHILDREN�S PLAYGROUND
Well equipped with slides, seesaw, swings and 

physical rides, this play ground for kids is a great 

source of engaging the little ones. The artificial 

grass on the bottom serves added source of 

greenery along with the safety features of the kids.

ZIP-LINE
If you are seeking for some adventure, Zip-lining 

may be one of them. The two Zip-lines at 

Chandragiri measure 100m & 200m long, gives you 

thrilling experience. You will undoubtedly have an 

excellent time in lap of nature while witness an 

amazing view of hills and mountains. A single 

individual may enjoy the ride at once.

WALL CLIMBING
Chandragiri�s Wall Climbing is outdoor climbing 

located at 2550 meters above sea level, which 

makes it the highest artificial climbing wall in Nepal. 

We opened this wall in 1st Baishakh 2078 with vision 

of promoting Nepalese sports climbing community 

and for our guest who want to experience the thrill 

and enjoyment of climbing wall.
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SWING
No matter how experienced or adventurous you are, 

the couple swing at the Top Station of Chandragiri 

Hills offers an exhilarating challenge for all 

thrill-seekers. Our couple swing is the highest swing 

located inside Kathmandu Valley at an altitude of 

2550m above sea level. Hanging on top of the 

Chandragiri Hills and overlooking the Kathmandu 

Valley with panoramic mountain view in front makes 

it one of the most attractive and adventurous 

activities that can be done at Chandragiri Hills.

SKY CYCLING
Experience the thrill of Skycycling at 2,551 meters, 

whether you choose to ride solo or with a partner! 

Suspended high above the valley, this adventure 

offers breathtaking Himalayan views. Use a GoPro 

to capture every daring moment and create 

unforgettable memories.

SKYWALK
Step into adventure on our 125-meter Skywalk! 

Suspended high above the valley, this thrilling 

experience is not for the faint-hearted. Feel the 

adrenaline rush as you walk along the edge, 

surrounded by breathtaking views of the Himalayas.

360 CYCLING
Experience the excitement of 360° Cycling at 

Chandragiri Hills� top station! Pedal along elevated 

tracks, surrounded by stunning Himalayan views, 

lush forests, and the Kathmandu Valley. Perfect for 

all adventurers, this unique activity blends 

adrenaline and breathtaking beauty.
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PONY RIDE
Explore the lush greenery of 

Chandragiri Hills with a serene 

pony ride! Breathe in the fresh 

mountain air as you meander 

through scenic trails, surrounded 

by the beauty of nature. Perfect 

for a relaxing and refreshing 

escape.

MULTI PURPOSE HALL

The modern hall, fully equipped 

with the necessary A/V facilities, 

can accommodate up to 200 

guests for corporate or social 

events, with flexible seating 

arrangements to suit your needs.
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CHANDRAGIRI
HILLS RESORT
Located in the serene surroundings of 

Chandragiri Hills, the Chandragiri Hills 

Resort is an ideal place for those who 

want to escape the stress of modern life 

and breathe in the fresh mountain air. 

What makes this destination even more 

exciting is that you can reach it by cable 

car. The resort offers breathtaking views 

of the Himalayan range, from Annapurna 

to Mt. Everest. You can enjoy these 

panoramic views from any of the 100 

accommodations available at the resort.

STANDARD ROOM
The Standard Rooms are located on the 

ground floor & have similar facilities to our 
Deluxe Rooms & have access to private 
green grass that acts as a natural feet 

therapy.

SUITE
Our Suite Room is an elevated experience 

with the view of the Himalayas and the 
golden sunrise from the luxury of your hotel 

room bed and the en-suite jacuzzi.

PRESIDENTIAL SUITE
The exquisitely designed suite features a 

lavish bedroom, a serene en-suite bathroom, 
and a private balcony for relaxation. 
Exclusive privileges like personalized 

services & private dining options further 
enhance the stay. Paranomic views of the 

Himalayas & modern amenities ensure you 
indulge in a truly majestic retreat.

DELUXE ROOM
The modern in-room furniture and amenities 
have been carefully designed and decorated 
for your comfort and needs. Additionally, the 

balcony opens up to majestic mountain 
views and offers fresh air for breathing.

EXECUTIVE ROOM
These are mostly located on the top floors 

of the building and are decorated with 
custom-designed handmade furniture. 

These rooms open up to a large balcony, 
allowing you to enjoy the natural beauty of 

the place.

CAFÉ KATHMANDU
This beautifully appointed all day dining 
restaurant gives you the opportunity to 
enjoy the spectacular views whilst you 

enjoy you breakfast, lunch and dinner. Our 
superb Chefs provide a par excellence 

variety of gastronomical treats to suit your 
appetite.
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SPA, STEAM & SAUNA
We offer state-of-the-art technology and a 
peaceful environment to soothe stress and 

rejuvenate the mind, body, and spirit. Our 
spa services are perfect for beauty 

treatments.

MANASLU FITNESS STUDIO
Manaslu Fitness Studio offers a unique 

fitness experience inspired by the majestic 
Mount Manaslu. Designed for both casual 

exercisers and fitness enthusiasts, our gym 
blends state-of-the-art facilities with the 

serene beauty of the Himalayas.

INDOOR GAMES
Chandragiri Hills Resort also offers a variety 

of indoor recreational games, including 
foosball, table tennis, carrom board, billiards, 
and many more, providing enjoyable leisure 

options for guests of all ages.

BRICKS BAR
The perfect spot to unwind with fine wines, 

creative cocktails, and live music every 
weekend. Enjoy soulful tunes, vibrant vibes, 

and stunning mountain views for an 
unforgettable evening.

INFINITY POOL
Take a refreshing dip into the crystal-clear 
waters of the infinity pool at Chandragiri 

Hills Resort and unwind amidst the 
picturesque landscape.The infinity pool at 

Chandragiri Hills adorns the best view of the 
surrounding valleys and mountains.

CONFERENCE HALL
If you are looking for your next annual 

meeting or a company retreat within the 
comfort of Kathmandu, look no further. The 
Chandragiri Hills Resort offers a captivating 

meetings and events venue for your 
corporate gatherings and inter-organization 

events.
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REGISTRATION
& OTHER DETAILS

Registration No: 124325/070/071

VAT No.:  303814991

Name of Company :  Chandragiri Hills Ltd.

Category :  Public Limited

Registered Address :  Panipokhari, Kathmandu -03
 +977-1-5970796 | info@chandragirihills.com

 www.chandragirihills.com

Business Operation Address :  Thankot, Kathmandu | +977-14312515

Banking Partner :  Prabhu Bank Ltd.

Auditor :  PYC & Associates
 Chartered Accountants

Particular of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies

S.N. Name of Company Holding/ Subsidary % of Share Held

1. Multipokhara Development Pvt. Ltd Subsidiary 100%

2. Chandragiri Hills Paragliding Ltd Subsidiary 100%
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Hem Raj Dhakal
Chairman

Mr. Kalyan Gurung
Director

Mr. Nawaraj Nepal
Director

Mr. Dilip Shekar Shrestha
Director

Mr. Bishnu Prasad Parajuli
Independent Director

Mr. Jhalak Raj Sharma
Company Secretary
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Mr. Hem Raj Dhakal
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wfld{s tyf ;f+:s[lts ;Dkbf;Dd km}lnPsf] xfd|f] klxrfgn] g]kfnnfO{ k/fk"j{sfnb]lv g} cfGtl/s tyf afXo ko{6sx¿sf] cfsif{0fsf] s]G� 
agfpFb} cfPsf] 5 . o;} sf/0f ko{6g If]qn] xfd|f] /fli6«o cy{tGqdf ljb]zL d'�f cfh{g, /f]huf/L l;h{gf / :yfgLo cy{tGqsf] ;'b[9Ls/0fdf 
dxTjk"0f{ of]ubfg k'of{pFb} cfPsf] 5 .

g]kfn ko{6g af]8{sf kl5Nnf] tYofÍcg';f/ ;g @)@% sf] hgj/Lb]lv gf]e]Da/;Dd g]kfn e|d0f ug{] ljb]zL ko{6ssf] ;+Vof !) nfv ^) 
xhf/eGbf a9L k'u]sf] 5, h'g cl3Nnf] jif{sf] ;f]xL cjlw;Fusf] t'ngfdf qmlds ;'wf/sf] ;+s]t xf] . o;n] ljZj ko{6g ahf/df g]kfnsf] 
cfsif{0f k'gM dha't aGb} uPsf] :ki6 b]vfpF5 .

oBlk, kl5Nnf] ;dosf /fhgLlts 36gfqmd tyf cl:y/tfn] ko{6g If]qdf uDeL/ r'gf}tLx¿ klg l;h{gf u/]sf 5g . ljz]ifu/L ebf} dlxgfdf 
ePsf] h]g�hL cfGbf]ngsf qmddf b]ze/sf] ko{6g pBf]udf k|ToIf tyf ck|ToIf ?kdf ulDe/ c;/ k/]sf] 5 . g]kfnsf ;du| ko{6g pBf]un] 
sl/a @% ca{ ?k}ofF a/fa/sf] ef}lts Iflt Joxf]g{' k/]sf]] 5 eg] Tof] eGbf al9 Jojf;flos Iflt ePsf] cg'dfg ul/Psf] 5 . cfGbf]ngsf] 
k|efj:j¿k b]zsf clwsf+z xf]6n tyf l/;f]6{x¿df a'lsª /2 x'g'sf ;fy} a'lsª b/ () k|ltzt;Dd 36]sf] lyof] . g]kfn cfpg] ko{6ssf] 
;+Vof klg pNn]Vo ?kdf 36]sf] lyof] . o;n] ko{6g If]q cToGt} ;+j]bgzLn /x]sf] oyfy{nfO{ :d/0f u/fPsf] 5 .

o; lsl;dsf ck|Toflzt 36gfqmdaf6 ko{6g If]qnfO{ hf]ufpg bL3{sfnLg / ;dGjosf/L Plss[t b[li6sf]0f cjnDag ug{' cTofjZos 
b]lvG5 . ko{6gnfO{ cTofjZos /fli6«o cfly{s If]qsf] ¿kdf :jLsf/ ub{}, o:tf ;+j]bgzLn cj:yfdf ko{6sLo uGtJo, xf]6n tyf ;]jf 
k|lti7fgnfO{ cfGbf]ng / cl:y/tfaf6 cnu /fVg] :ki6 gLlt / sfo{ljlw cfjZos 5 . ;fy}, ;+s6sf] ;dodf ;/sf/, ;'/Iff lgsfo, lghL 
If]q / ko{6g;Fu ;DalGwt ;+:yfx¿aLr k|efjsf/L ;dGjo ;+oGq :yfkgf u/L ko{6ssf] ;'/Iff, ;]jf lg/Gt/tf / b]zsf] 5ljsf] ;+/If0f 
;'lglZrt ug{'kb{5 .

o;/L ;do ;dodf cfOkg]{ r'gf}tLk"0f{ cj:yfx¿aLr klg bL3{sfnLg ;f]r, ;sf/fTds b[li6sf]0f, ;+:yfut l:y/tf / ;/f]sf/jfnfx¿sf] 
ljZjf;df cfwfl/t k|of;n] dfq ko{6g Joj;fonfO{ lg/Gt/tf / yk dha'tL lbg ;lsG5 eGg] ljZjf;nfO{ xfdLn] cfTd;ft u/]sf 5f}F . 
oxL ;f]r / k|lta4tfsf ;fy cl3 a9\b}, r'gf}tLnfO{ cj;/df ¿kfGt/0f ug{] xfd|f] k|of; lg/Gt/ /x]sf] 5 / /lx/xg] 5 .

g]kfnsf] cfGtl/s tyf afXo ko{6gsf] k|j4{g ug]{ pb]:on] ;g\ @))& df :yflkt o; rGb|lu/L lxN;n] cfh ;Dd cfOk'Ubf !* jif{sf] ofqf 
to ul/;s]sf] 5 . o; cjlwdf sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] ljQLo cg'zf;g, lbuf] Joj:yfkg / bL3{sfnLg b[li6sf]0fnfO{ sfod /fVg ;kmn ePsf] 
5 . kl/0fd:j?k, sDkgLn] cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ sf] d'gfkmfaf6 z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?nfO{ r'Qmf k"FhLsf] % k|ltzt af]g; ;]o/ ljt/0f ug{] 
/ sDkgLsf] k"FhL ;+/rgf yk ;'b[9 ug{] p2]Zon] ztk|ltzt xsk|b z]o/ hf/L ug{] k|:tfj cl3 ;f/]sf] 5 . oL lg0f{ox¿n] sDkgLsf] eljiosf 
nufgL of]hgf, ;]jf lj:tf/ tyf bL3{sfnLg ljQLo ;'b[l9s/0fdf yk ;xof]u k'of{pg] ljZjf; lnPsf 5f}F . o; cj;/df lg/Gt/ ;fy, ljZjf; 
/ w}o{tfsf nflu ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿k|lt xflb{s cfef/ JoQm ub{5' .

rG�flul/ kj{tdf cjl:yt rGb|flul/ lxN;n] b]ze/sf ko{6sx¿;Fu} ef/t, rLg tyf cGo cGt{/fli6«o ahf/af6 cfpg] cfuGt'sx¿nfO{ 
lg/Gt/ cfslif{t ub{} cfPsf] 5 . oxfF cfof]hgf x'g] /fli6«o tyf cGt/{fli6«o ;Dd]ng, ;f+:s[lts sfo{qmd, s"6gLlts e|d0f tyf ljz]if 
;df/f]xx¿n] klg sDkgLsf] k|lti7f / klxrfgnfO{ cem dha't agfPsf 5g eGg] ljZjf; lnPsf] 5' .
s]ansf/ ofqf, kbofqf dfu{, ;fxl;s ultljlw, afnaflnsfsf nflu v]nd}bfg tyf dgf]/~hg kfs{h:tf ;'ljwfx¿n] ko{6sx¿sf] cg'ejn-
fO{ yk ;d[4 agfPsf 5g . zfGt, :jR5 / /d0fLo jftfj/0fdf cjl:yt nSh/L l/;f]6{n] cltlyx¿nfO{ ljlzi6 ;]jf / clj:d/0fLo cg'ej 
k|bfg ub{} cfPsf] 5 . cfh rG�flul/ lxN; s]jn Ps ko{6sLo uGtJo dfq geO{, k|s[lt, cWoflTdstf, dgf]/~hg / clj:d/0fLo cg'ejsf] 
ljZjfl;nf] ;+udsf ¿kdf :yflkt ePsf] 5 .

xfdLn] ;w}+ :yfgLo ;d'bfo;Fu ;xsfo{ / ljZjf;nfO{ k|fyldstfdf /fVb} cfPsf 5f}F . /f]huf/L l;h{gf, ;]jf k|jfx tyf ;|f]t Joj:yfkgdf 
:yfgLo hgzlQm / ;fdu|LnfO{ k|fyldstf lbFb} cfPsf 5f}F . :yfgLo ;d'bfosf] ;xof]u / ;xsfo{ lagf cfhsf] pknlAw ;Dej x'g] lyPg 
eGg]df xfdL :ki6 5f}F, / o;sf nflu ;Dk"0f{ ;/f]sf/jfnfx¿k|lt xflb{s wGojfb ;d]t JoQm ub{5' .

cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?, 
xfd|f] nIo s]jn cfly{s pknlAwdf ;Lldt 5}g . rG�flul/ lxN;nfO{ cGt/{fli6«o :t/sf] gd'gf ko{6sLo uGtJosf ¿kdf :yflkt ub{} lbuf] 
ko{6g k|j4{gdfkm{t /fli6«o cy{tGqdf bL3{sfnLg of]ubfg k'of{pg] k|lta4tfdf xfdL b[9 5f}+ . cfw'lgs k|ljlwsf] ;d'lrt k|of]u, ;]jf 
u'0f:t/df lg/Gt/ ;'wf/ / jftfj/0fd}qL cEof;dfkm{t xfdL of] nIotkm{ cl3 al9/x]sf 5f}F .

cGTodf, rG�flul/ lxN;nfO{ ;a}sf] ;femf ;DklQ / /f]hfOsf] uGtJosf ¿kdf ljsf; ub{} g]kfnsf] cfly{s ¿kfGt/0fdf ;sf/fTds of]ubfg 
k'of{pg] xfd|f] k|of; ;kmn x'g]5 eGg] ljZjf; JoQm ub{5' . o; ofqfdf lg/Gt/ ;fy / ;xof]u ug'{x'g] cfb/0fLo u|fxsju{, :yfgLo lgsfo, 
g]kfn ;/sf/, lgofds lgsfo tyf ;Dk"0f{ ;/f]sf/jfnfx¿ k|lt xflb{s cfef/ k|s6 ub{5' . ;fy} cfufdL lbgdf ;d]t ;f]xL lsl;dsf] ljZjf; 
/ e/f]iffsf] ck]Iff ub{5' . 

x]d /fh 9sfn
cWoIf



rGb|flul/ lxN; lnld6]8 
;+rfns ;ldltsf] aflif{s k|ltj]bg  

cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ 
 

cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?, 

rGb|flul/ lxN; lnld6]8sf] ;f]x|f} aflif{s ;fwf/0f;efdf pkl:yt ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?nfO{ d]/f] JolQmut 
tyf ;+rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 xflb{s :jfut ub{5' . 

rGb|flul/ lxN; Jofj;flos ?kdf ;+rfngdf cfPsf] ( jif{ k'/f ePsf] 5 . o; qmddf ;du| d'n'ssf] Psdfq 
cnf}lss Ps[lst e|d0f :ynsf ?kdf rGb|flul/ lxN;nfO{ :yflkt ug{ xfdL ;kmn ePsf 5f}+ . P]ltxfl;s / 
wfld{s dxTjn] el/Psf] o; :yndf kl/jf/sf ;a} k':tfsf nflu dgf]/d k|fs[lts b[iofjnf]sg, ;fxl;s 
v]nx?sf ;fy} pTs[i6 cfltYotf ;lxtsf] clj:d/0fLo If0fx?sf] cg'e'lt lbnfpg] k|of;df xfdL lg/Gt/ nflu 
/x]sf 5f}+ .  
rGb|flul/ lxN; ed|0fdf cfpg] cfGtl/s Pjd\ afXo ko{6sx?, nufgLstf{x? nufot o; sDkgLdf sfo{/t 
sd{rf/L ;fyLx? ;a}nfO{ v';L / ;Gt'li6 lbg ;Sg] :ynsf ?kdf :yflkt ug{' sDkgLsf] d'Vo sfo{lbzf /x]sf] 
5 . / sDkgLn] ;f]xL cg'?k cfkm\gf Joj;flos ultljlw ;+rfng ub}{ cfO/x]sf] klg d ;ef;dIf hfgsf/L 
u/fpg rfxfG5' . 
o; jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ df ePsf pknlAw, sfo{gLlt / cfufdL jif{sf] nIo ;lxtsf] 
sfo{of]hgfsf]  ljj/0f k|:t't u/]sf 5f}+ . ;fy} of] k|ltj]bg sDkgL P]g, @)^# Pj+ g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{af6 hf/L 
;"rLs[t ;+ul7t ;+:yfx?sf] ;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;DaGwL lgb]{zg, @)&$ Pj+ cGo k|rlnt sfg'g cg'?k tof/ 
ul/Psf] 5 . 

s_ /fli6«o tyf cGt/{fli6«o kl/b[Zo / o;af6 sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/df k/]sf] k|efj 
ljZjJofkL /fhgLlts cl:y/tf, e"/fhgLlts tgfj / cfly{s clglZrttfsf sf/0f kl5Nnf jif{x¿df lzlyn 
ag]sf] ko{6g Joj;fo xfn qmdzM ;'wf/f]Gd'v b]lvPsf] lyof] . cGt{/fli6«o xjfO{ ;Dks{ la:tf/, Pl;ofnL 
d'n'sx¿�ljz]ifu/L rLg�sf] ko{6g k'g?Tyfg tyf ljZjJofkL dfudf cfPsf] ;'wf/sf sf/0f ko{6g If]q 
;sf/fTds lbzftkm{ cl3 al9/x]sf] ljZj ko{6g ;+u7g (UNWTO) sf kl5Nnf tYofÍx¿n] b]vfPsf 5g\ . 

t/, o; ;sf/fTds k|j[lQaLr @)*@ ;fn ebf} @# / @$ ut]sf] h]g�hL cfGbf]ngn] g]kfnsf] ko{6g pBf]udf 
uDeL/ cj/f]w l;h{gf uof]{ . o; cfGbf]ngsf sf/0f b]ze/ ko{6g If]qdf k|ToIf tyf ck|ToIf ¿kdf 7"nf] Iflt 
k'u]sf] 5 . ;du| ko{6g pBf]un] sl/a @% ca{ ?k}ofF a/fa/sf] ef}lts Iflt Joxf]g{' k/]sf] 5 eg] Jofj;flos 
Iflt o;eGbf klg a9L ePsf] cfsng ul/Psf] 5 . 

o;sf] c;/af6 rG�flul/ lxN; lnld6]8 klg c5'tf] /xg ;s]g . cfGbf]ngsf qmddf sDkgLsf ;+/rgfdf 
ePsf] cfuhgL, tf]8kmf]8 tyf n'6kf6sf sf/0f s]jnsf/;lxt ;Dk"0f{ ;]jf sl/a tLg dlxgf;Dd k"0f{ ¿kdf 
aGb /xg k'Uof] . o; cjlwdf sDkgLn] sl/a %) s/f]8 ?k}ofFeGbf a9Lsf] k|ToIf cfly{s Iflt Joxf]g{' kof{] . 
nfdf] ;dosf] cj/f]wkl5 xfn sDkgL k'gM ;~rfngdf cfPsf] 5 / Jofj;flos ultljlwx¿n] qmdzM ult 
lng yfn];+u} cfufdL lbgdf sDkgLsf] sf/f]jf/df j[l4 x'g] ck]Iff ug{ ;lsG5 .  

To;}u/L, s'n ufx{:y pTkfbgdf b]lvPsf] qmlds ;'wf/, ljk|]if0f cfk|jfxdf ePsf] j[l4, lgolGqt d'�f:kmLlt 
tyf g]kfn /fi6« a}+såf/f hf/L df}l�s gLltdf ul/Psf] s]xL lgofds ;xhtfsf sf/0f cy{tGq qmdzM rnfodfg 
aGb} uPsf] 5 . o;n] cfufdL lbgdf cfGtl/s tyf afXo ko{6ssf] cfjfudg / ko{6g ultljlwdf ljutsf 
jif{x¿sf] t'ngfdf ;'wf/ cfpg] ck]Iff ug{ ;lsg] cfwf/ k|bfg u/]sf] 5 . 
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]n/fs/; nfk]g fd{ebG; };o  ;g  {Ofnwljc ]fsdD; ##)@ vl]b #@)@ � szb g6{ok �sf ¿  }{bu ff0fi]f3 fdk
el s6{ok Lz]bjl vfn %# a/ls fdwljc ]f; q\of 5 ]fsPnl oIn ]gp  s6{ok . 9a wljc Of;a t;}fc ]fs \  ]fb

5Gvl]b sdTf/fs; fgjfeD; gLnfs{3Lb ]fsq]fI g6{ok ]fsnfk]g glk ]nt]s+; ]fs]x/ fddmq  .  

8el]fs fyt k]fs|k stl[sf|k ,g{tj/lk 'ofjnh ,jfgt stlLghf/"e jZjl ,klBo �  jZjl /]fhds ]fstfrZk (!
n fsof;joJ g6{ok ¿xgbl Ldfufc f0/fs fs4l[j s{ylfc g}bFvl]b ]ge mQ'dLt}fg'r fdk¿ {f0"k ulf g .  ]n};oT

5 fs]u'k gGa fIk {ofjglc fsof;joJ g6{ok L/fot ]fstl|k6s+; / gk]fubl ,gkfy:joJ dvl]fh g .  stl[sf|k
gj ,ftwjljl snl]fu}fe ,f0/jftfj � Lbg ,nu+h � s{dlfw fyt fnfg �  ]fsg6{ok fdnfk]g f0/fs fs/x]f/w stl[s:+f;

eD; /'r|k g}5 ]fs]s; g'x }mec u]fok'b; {f0"k ]fsfgjfeD; Lt glk ]x/ fgjf   ulfn fsgdufjfc hx; ]fss6{ok .
cfjZos k"jf{  }sLt}fg'r }mec jfec ]fsmQlzgh fIb fyt {ufd rF'xk ,L6el6Sl]gs {Ofjx ,nfh~; s8; oL/t: ,/fw
¿kdf ljBdfg . g5 fs]x/  

/u u]fok'b; fdk?{f0"k {OfnftdfI ]fsg6{ok  fdk? ]fst]f|; oV'd ]fsg{hfc ofc fyt fg{h;l L/fuh]f/ {Ofnq]fI ;o L
 fsf0/sgl"oG jfec ]fstSlzgh tfIlzl|k . 5 ]fs]x/ ftsoZjfc ]fsf0/shlx; t]d; 6fa/t: L/fs/; {gu ;fsjl

 oLgfy: s]/x . 5 ]fs]x/ soZjfc gpfo¥'k fd/t: fsnlfk s]/x ]fss'n'd r'Fxk ]fs?xdnlft oL/t: ulfn txdf 
cfkm\  /fw{fj"k ulfn fsf0d|e fyt gdufjfc hx; ]fs?xs6{ok ,/f;|k /fr|k ]fsoJtGu oLs6{ok ]fsu]e ]fg

 oLs6{ok t[sslP oGc ft:h ;Nxl /lulf|bGr . 5 ]fsP/lu ;';xd {]gk{'gu nxk fi]zjl ulfn fs;fsal
]zjl fd/fw'; qGt{yc /{egldTfc t{mkfd g{4j|k fyt f0{fdgl ]fs?xoJtGu  ]nfsPe ]gsl; gpfo¥'k gfbu]fo fi

f;T]f|k ky {Ofnq]fI Lhgl 6fa/fs/; nfk]g x  fsgdogl fyt tld'gc gnfr+; ,{f0fdgl ]fs?xoJtGu t[sslP {gu g
6'5 ulfn \ /fs/; nfk]g . 5Gvl]b {]gk{'gu f0{fdgl ]fs?xdogl g]P }6 n] f0fi]f3 f  ]fs?xdmq{ofs fyt tlLg fs]/u

{fofs L/fsjfe|k Gjogsf ;fy}  Lhg]h fsPe tjlfe|k f0/fs fsfg63 t{hl;l 5lk;oT / gn]fbGfc   n6]fx
txf/ {Ofn?xof;joJ h]sfoK fs  Nofpg cfjZos 5 .  ,}yf;   /s t[sslP {OfoN ftk?sP fd?x/b fs/s

u tfj?'; ]fsLnff0|k g{ klg h?/L . 5Gvl]b  

v_ ljut a /fj]f/fs ]fs{fi   
 Lgw/o]z  ]n?xjfe'gfxd o;  s{ylfc {yfyo ]fsLgkDs 6fagb]jtl|k tzlfs|k ]fs{fij s{ylfc ffIdl; ]fsLgkDs

cj:yf /lu f0fi]nZjl ]fstlu|k{ofs fyt  ]n}d ]gGe 5 ]fsPe 'gS; ljZjf; lnPsf] . '5  
sDkgLsf]  gfd gb]jtl|k oLQjl nfk]g ?xf0/jjl s{ylfc (Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, NFRS)  ]fs

:|k L/fk /fot fd/fwfc . 5 ]fsP/lu t't  

!=  {fij s{ylfc @)*!÷*@ / @)*)÷*!  ]fs  sdTfgn't sf/f]a . 5 ]fs]x/ /fs|k ;o f0/jjl ]fs/f  
=+;=|s  ljj/0f cf= j= @)*!.@)*@ cf= j= @)*).@)*! km/s km/s - _fdtfk'gc  

!_ LgfbDfc ]fs{mkt /fsnj]s      

s_ LgfbDfc 6fa|sjl 6s6l  495,712,288 578,406,001 (82,693,713) -14.297% 

v_ LgfbDfc oGc fyt L|sjl f|b'v ,{yfbko]k ,Bfv  134,776,559 143,582,072 (8,805,513) -6.133% 

@_ LgfbDfc ]fs{mkt {6]f;/l  242,008,750 249,378,533 (7,369,783) -2.955% 

#_ ;fxl;s LgfbDfc ]fs{mkt kfnsfo|sl  29,918,970 28,749,374 1,169,596 4.068% 

$_ LgfbDfc n's  902,416,567 1,000,115,981 (97,699,413) -9.769% 

%_ cGo cfDbfgL 30,938,169 37,236,746 (6,298,577) -16.915% 

^_ hDdf cfDbfgL 933,354,736 1,037,352,727 (103,997,991) -10.025% 

&_ {rv gnfr+; M g"oG  180,626,367 181,239,708 (613,342) -0.338% 

*_ {rv gkfy:joJ L/fr{ds M g"oG  178,044,839 170,420,036 7,624,804 4.474% 

(_ {rv sgl;fz|k M g"oG  36,836,782 49,400,346 (12,563,564) -25.432% 

!)_ {rv g{4j|k Lmqjl M g"oG  8,827,701 4,001,527 4,826,174 120.608% 

!!_ {rv n's  404,335,690 405,061,618 (725,928) -0.179% 

!@_ ÷ fmkfg'd 6faof;joJ - _Lgf;S]fg  529,019,047 632,291,109 (103,272,062) -16.333% 

!#_ {rv hfoA M g"oG  164,483,932 239,644,012 (75,160,081) -31.363% 
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!$_ x|f; s6\6L tyf s/ klxn]sf] v'b gfkmf÷-gf]S;fgL_ 364,535,115 392,647,097 (28,111,982) -7.160% 

!%_ Go"g M x|f; s6\6L 123,609,487 119,142,565 4,466,922 3.749% 

!^_ s/ klxn]sf] v'b gfkmf÷-gf]S;fgL_ 240,925,628 273,504,532 (32,578,904) -11.912% 

!^_ Go"g M k/ ;fl/Psf] s/ tyf cGo ;dfof]hg 53,428,286 73,529,876 (20,101,590) -27.338% 

!&_ v"b gfkmf ÷-gf]S;fgL_ 187,497,342 199,974,656 (12,477,314) -6.239% 
 

cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ sf/f]jf/sf] cfwf/df l:y/ /xg uof] . kl5Nnf] cf=j= @)*)÷*! sf] t'ngfdf sDkgLsf] 
s'n cfDbfgLdf sl/a !) k|ltztn] x|f; cfPsf] 5 . o;sf] d'Vo sf/0f s]jnsf/ e|d0fdf cfpg] ofq'x?sf] 
;+Vofdf ePsf] sdL g} /x]sf] 5 . kl5Nnf] cf=j= df ePsf] ljleGg k|fs[lts k|lts'ntf tyf ;f]sf sf/0f pTkGg 
cj/f]wx?, ljleGg lj/f]wsf sfo{s|d nufotsf sf/0f s]jnsf/ ofqfsf nflu cfpg] ko{6sx?df s]xL sdL 
cfof] h;sf] k|ToIf c;/ sDkgLsf] cfly{s sf/f]jf/df b]lvof] . sDkgLsf] d'Vo vr{ bL3{sfnLg shf{sf] Aofh 
vr{ /x]sf] 5 . o; cf=j=df a}+ssf] Jofhb/ cl3Nnf] cf=j= df eGbf 36]sf], ls:tfsf] e'QmfgL tyf shf{ 
/sdsf] cu|Ld e'QmfgLsf sf/0f Aofh vr{df pNn]Vo sdL cfPsf] s'/f o; ul/dfdo ;ef ;dIf /fVg rfxG5' 
. o; cf=j=df ;d]t sDkgLsf] vr{tkm{ ldtJolotf ckgfO{sf sf/0f ;du|df sDkgLsf] s'n vr{ kl5Nnf] 
cf=j=s} xf/xf/Ldf /xg uPsf] 5 . 

cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df s]jnsf/ df ^@^,&*% hgfn] ofqf u/] h'g cl3Nnf] cf=j= eGbf sl/a !* k|ltztn] 
sdL ePsf] 5 . o;df ;a}eGbf w]/} cg'kftsf] sdL g]kfnL ofq'x?sf] /x]sf] 5 . h;sf] ljj/0f lgDg cg';f/ 
/x]sf] 5 . 

ljj/0f  cf= j= @)*!.@)*@ cf= j= @)*).@)*! km/s km/s -cg'kftdf_ 

g]kfnL              460,314               592,746            (132,432) -22.342% 

;fs{ d'n's             143,088               152,643             (9,555) -6.260% 

cGo ljb]zL                23,383                22,881                502  2.194% 

hDdf          626,785           768,270       (141,485) -18.416% 
 

o;}ul/ xfn;Dd ljleGg cfly{s jif{x?df s]jnsf/ e|d0fdf cfpg] ofq'x?sf] t'ngfTds ljj/0f o; k|sf/ 
/x]sf] 5 .  

o;}ul/ xfn;Ddsf] ljleGg cfly{s jif{x?sf] l/;f]6{tkm{sf] sf]7fx?sf] las|L ;+Vof tyf cf};t b/ o;k|sf/ 
/x]sf] 5 . 
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ljutdf sf]le8 kl5sf] k|lts'ntfaf6 ;'wfl/bF} cfPsf] sDkgLsf] cfly{s ultljlw cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df s]xL 
l:y/ b]lvPsf] 5 . ;du| d'n'ssf] ;fdflhs, cfly{s tyf /fhlglts kl/b[Zosf] k|ToIf c;/ sDkgLsf] 
sf/f]jf/df klg b]lvPsf] 5 .          

@= cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ tyf @)*)÷*! sf k|d'v ljQLo cg'kftx? o; k|sf/ /x]sf] 5 . 

ljj/0f cf= j= @)*!.*@ cf= j= @)*).@)*! 

C0f k"FhLsf] cg'kft 1.06 1.35 

l/6{g cg OlSj6L 11.52% 13.89% 

k|lt z]o/ cfDbfgL -?_ 12.22 13.04 

k|lt z]o/ g]6jy{  -?_ 106.08 93.87 

k|lt z]o/ s'n ;DklQsf] d"No -?_ 243.83 242.07 

k|lt z]o/ ahf/ d"No -? !))÷�k|lt z]o/_ -?_ 956.02 908 

k|fO{; clg{ª /]l;of] -6fO{D; _ 78.22 69.66 

rfn' cg'kft 0.78 0.93 

 

u_ Rffn' cf=j= sf] k|ltj]bg tof/ x'Fbfsf] ldlt;Ddsf k|d'v ultljlwx? tyf nIo  
 
cf=j= @)*@÷*# sf] k|yd qodf;sf] tyf ut jif{sf] ;f]lx cjlwsf] t'ngfTds ljj/0f o; k|sf/ /x]sf] 5 . 
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ljj/0f 
cf=j= @)*@.*# 

cflZjg d;fGt ;Dd 
cf=j= @)*!.*@ 

cflZjg d;fGt ;Dd 
km/s 

km/s       
-cg'kft_ 

s]jnsf/ tkm{sf] cfDbfgL     

l6s6 ljs|af6 cfDbfgL 72,178,514 106,632,380 (34,453,866) -32.31% 

vfB, k]okbfy{, v'b|f ljs|L tyf cGo cfDbfgL 19,995,978 22,113,699 (2,117,721) -9.58% 

l/;f]6{ tkm{sf] cfDbfgL 42,067,500 55,247,477 (13,179,977) -23.86% 

;fxl;s ls|ofsnfk tkm{sf] cfDbfgL 4,465,771 11,882,032 (7,416,261) -62.42% 

s'n cfDbfgL 138,707,763 195,875,589 (57,167,826) -29.19% 

cGo cfDbfgL 10,288,867 754,453 9,534,414 1263.75% 

hDdf cfDbfgL 148,996,629 196,630,041 (47,633,412) -24.22% 

Go"g M ;+rfng vr{ 22,875,257 26,210,605 (3,335,348) -12.73% 

Go"g M sd{rf/L Joj:yfkg vr{ 41,791,932 45,935,552 (4,143,619) -9.02% 

Go"g M k|zf;lgs vr{ 32,223,099 23,817,141 8,405,958 35.29% 

Go"g M ljqmL k|j4{g vr{ 1,173,067 838,702 334,365 39.87% 

s'n vr{ 98,063,355 96,801,999 1,261,356 1.30% 

Joj;foaf6 d'gfkmf ÷-gf]S;fgL_ 50,933,274 99,828,042 (48,894,768) -48.98% 

Go"g M Aofh vr{ 34,122,520 44,969,625 (10,847,105) -24.12% 

x|f; s6\6L tyf s/ klxn]sf] v'b gfkmf÷-gf]S;fgL_ 16,810,754 54,858,416 (38,047,662) -69.36% 

Go"g M x|f; s6\6L 29,242,483 29,328,550 (86,067) -0.29% 

s/ klxn]sf] v'b gfkmf÷-gf]S;fgL_ (12,431,728) 25,529,867 (37,961,595) -148.69% 

 
sDkgLsf] cf=j= @)*@÷*# sf] k|yd qodf;sf] s/f]jf/df cl3Nnf] cf=j=sf] ;f]xL cjlwsf] t'ngfdf sdL 
cfPsf]] 5 . @)*@ efb| @# tyf @$ ut]sf] kb{zg kZrft sDkgL kl/;/df ul/Psf] tf]8kmf]8, n'6kf6 tyf 
cfuhgLsf sf/0f ef}lts ;+/rfgfdf dfq Iflt geP/ sDkgLsf ;Dk'0f{ Joj;flos ultljlw k'0f{ ?kdf aGb 
x'g uof] . h;sf sf/0f sDkgLn] sl/a krf; s/f]8 xf/xf/Lsf] cfly{s gf]S;fgL Joxf]g'{ kof]{ . oBkL pQm 
36gf kZrft sDkgLsf] cfly{s tyf Joj;flos ultlalwx?sf] oyfl;3| ;+rfngsf nflu hn]/ Wj:t ePsf 
s]jnsf/sf cTofjZos pks/0fx? tyf ;fdfu|Lx?sf] cfoft, d'Vo If]qx?sf] ddt{df tbf?stsf ;fy sfo{x? 
;DkGg u/L Joj;flos ultlalwx? k'g ;+rfngdf NofO;lsPsf] 5 / sDkgLsf] ;du| Joj;fo ;'wf/f]Gd'v 
/x]sf] 5 . 
 
3_ ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj  
o; cjlwdf ljut jif{df h:t} ;+:yfut pQ/bfloTj cGtu{t sDkgLsf] tkm{af6 tklznsf If]qdf ;xof]u 
ul/Psf] 5 M 
!= :yfgLo:t/df /x]sf ljleGg # j6f d7dlGb/x?df sDkgL / :yfgLox? aLr ;dGjo u/L x/]s aif{ k"hfcfhf 
ug{ u/fpgsf nflu cfly{s ;xof]u ul/b} cfPsf] . 

@=:yfgLo:t/df /x]sf ljleGg o'jf Sna, ;fdflhs ;+3;+:yf nufotsf ;+:yfx?n] u/]sf elnan k|ltof]lutf, 
Aof8ldG6g k|ltof]lutf h:tf cfof]hgfx?df cfly{s ;xof]u ul/b} cfPsf] . 

@= dsjfgk'/ lhNnf rv]nl:yt >L sfnL df=lj= nfO{ x/]s jif{ ?= b'O{ nfv cfly{s ;xof]u u/L pQm If]qdf 
/x]sf afnaflnsfx?sf] k7gkf7gdf ;xof]u ub]{ cfPsf] . 

#= dsjfgk'/ lhNnfsf afl;Gbfx?nfO{ cfktsfnLg cj:yfdf la/fdL eO{ sf7df8f}F lhNnfsf c:ktfn cfpg' 
kbf{ ;xof]u :j?k h'g;'s} ;dodf ;d]t lgMz'Ns s]jnsf/sf] ;]jf k|bfg ul//x]sf] . 
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$= l8lehg jg sfof{no, sf7df8fF} / :yfgLo ;fd'bflos jg pkef]Qmf ;d"xx?;+usf] ;+o'Qm ;xsfo{ cGt{ut 
o; sfof{noaf6 Onfsf l8lehg jg sfof{no, yfgsf]6nfO{ jg 89]nf] lgoGq0fsf nflu $ hgf jg x]/fn' 
b:tfsf] dfl;s kfl/>lds jfkt s'n Ps nfv rfln; xhf/ ?k}ofF cfly{s ;xof]u ul/Psf] .  

ª_ sDkgLsf] cf}Bf]lus tyf Joj;flos ;DaGw  
o; sDkgLsf] cfkm\gf cltly kfx'gfx?, ;fdfg cfk"lt{stf{x? tyf ;]jfk|bfosx?, a}s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?, 
lgdf{0f 7]s]bf/x? / k/fdz{bftfx?, 6«fen Ph]G;Lx?, ;/sf/L lgsfo tyf sfo{/t clwsf/Lx? / lgofds 
lgsfo tyf sfo{/t clwsf/Lx?;+u /fd|f] / ;f}xfb{k"0f{ Joj;flos ;DaGw /x]sf] 5 . 
sDkgLsf] ;ldIff cjlwdf sDkgLdf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx?;Fusf] ;DaGw ;'dw'/, ;f}xfb{k"0f{ / pTs[i6 /x]sf] ;xif{ 
hfgsf/L u/fpb5f} . sDkgLn] cfkm\gf sd{rf/Lx? nufot pgLx?sf] kl/jf/sf ;b:ox?sf] :jf:Yo tyf 
JolQmut ;'/IffnfO{ ;d]t ljz]if Wofg k'¥ofpFb} cfPsf] 5 .  

To;}ul/ o; sDkgL Hotel Association of Nepal (HAN) sf] k"0f{ ;b:o /x]sf] 5 . o;sf ;fy} Pacific Asia 

Travel Association (PATA), Nepal Association of Travel and Tour Agencies (NATTA) sf] ;d]t ;b:o /x]sf] 
5 . o;}ul/ Federation of Nepalese Chambers of Commerce & Industries (FNCCI) sf] P;f]l;P6 ;b:o x'g'sf 
;fy} Confederation of National Industries (CNI) tyf pQm ;+:yfn] ;+rfng u/]sf] :Jfb]zL cleofgsf] ;d]t  

;b:o /x]sf] 5 . sDkgLn] Management Association of Nepal (MAN) sf] ;d]t ;b:otf k|fKt u/]sf] 5 . 

r_ ;~rfns ;ldltdf ePsf] x]/km]/ / ;f] sf] sf/0f  
ut cfly{s jif{sf] !% cf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f;ef kZrft tklzn cg';f/sf] ;+rfnsx?sf] /flhgfdf k|fKt eO{ 
:jLs[t ePsf] tyf lgo'lQm ePsf] 5 . 
 

s|=;+= ;+rfnssf] gfd y/ ;+rfnssf] lsl;d s}lkmot 
! >L pQd s'df/ g]kfn ;+:yfks z]o/ ;b:oaf6 ldlt @)*! sflt{s @( ut]sf] ;+rfns 

;ldltsf] a}7saf6 /flhgfdf :jLs[t ul/Psf] . 
@ >L gj/fh g]kfn ;+:yfks z]o/ ;b:oaf6 ldlt @)*! d+l;/ !) ut]sf] ;+rfns ;ldltsf] 

a}7saf6 ;+:yfks z]o/ ;b:osf] l/Qm /x]sf] 
:yfgdf lgo'lQm ul/Psf] . 

# >L k|]d/fh hf]zL :jtGq ;+rfns 
;b:oaf6 

ldlt @)*! kmfNu'0f @ ut] a;]sf] ;+rfns 
;ldltsf] a}7saf6 /flhgfdf :jLs[t ul/Psf]  . 

$ >L lji0f' k|;fb k/fh'nL :jtGq ;+rfns 
;b:oaf6 

ldlt @)*! kmfNu'0f @@ ut]sf] ;+rfns 
;ldltsf] a}7saf6 l/Qm /x]sf] :jtGq ;+rfns 
;b:o kbdf lgo'lQm ul/Psf] . 

  
5_ sf/f]jf/df c;/ kfg]{ d'Vo s'/fx? 
ko{6g Joj;fo clt g} ;+j]bgzLn k|s[ltsf] Joj;fo ePsf] x'gfn] k|ToIf / ckToIf ?kdf ljleGg s'/faf6 
k|efljt eO{ /xg] s'/f cjut u/fpg rfxG5f} . ;f] dWo] s]xL sf/0fx? tn lbOPsf] 5 M 
 ljZjJofkL ?kdf k/]sf] cfly{s dGbLsf] k|ToIf tyf ck|ToIf c;/x? . 
 /fli6«o tyf cGt{/fli6«o 36gfqmd tyf ;f]af6 l;lh{t sf/0faf6 kg]{ c;/x? . 
 ljb]zL ljlgdo b/df x'g] pRr ptf/ r9fj . 
 u'0f:t/Lo ljb]zL ko{6snfO{ cfslif{t ug{ xf]6n Joj;fodf a9\bf] k|lt:kwf{ . 
 b]zdf ljBdfg dx+uL, g]kfn ;/sf/sf ljleGg k|sf/sf lg0f{ox? h:t} ljgf jlu{s/0f ePsf] ljleGg ljb]zL 

pkef]Uo j:t'x?sf] cfoftdf nufOPsf] k|ltjGw tyf ;f] kZrft l;lh{t cj:yf . 
 g]kfn ljZjdf g} ko{6s lx;fjn] w]/} ;Defjgf af]s]sf] b]z ePtfklg o;sf] k|efjsf/L ;Dj4{g u/L gLlt 

lgdf0f{ ug{ g;Sg' . 
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 o; rGb|flul/ lxN; h:tf] Plss[t uGtJonfO{ ;xh x'g]u/L o; k|sf/sf ko{6sLo uGtJosf ;Dk"0f{ ultljlw 
;d]l6 ;femf gLlt lgdf0f{ x'g g;Sg' .  

 ;do ;dodf x'g] cgk]lIft /fhlglts tyf ;fdflhs 36gfqmd tyf ;f]af6 l;h{gf x'g] k|lts'n kl/l:ylt. 
  

h_ n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf s'g} s}lkmot pNn]v ePsf] eP ;f] pk/ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltlqmof  
s'g} s}lkmot pNn]v gul/Psf] . 
 
em_ nfef+z afF8kmfF8 ug{ l;kmfl/; ul/Psf] /sd  
sDkgLsf] r'Qmf k"FhLsf] % k|ltzt af]g; z]o/ hf/L ug]{ ljz]if k|:tfj o;} ;fwf/0f ;efdf k]z ul/Psf] x'Fbf 
pQm af]g; z]o/df nfUg] s/ k|of]hgfy{ )=@^#@ k|ltztn] x'g cfpg] ?= $),#&,)*@ gub nfef+z ljt/0f 
ug]{ . 
 
`_ z]o/ hkmt ePsf] eP hkmt ePsf] z]o/ ;+Vof, To:tf] z]o/sf] c+lst d"No, To:tf] z]o/ hkmt x'g' 
eGbf cufj} ;f] afkt sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] hDdf /sd / To:tf] z]o/ hkmt ePkl5 ;f] z]o/ lalqm u/L 
sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] /sd tyf hkmt ePsf] z]o/afkt /sd lkmtf{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f  
sDkgLn] s'g} z]o/x? hkmt u/]sf] 5}g .  
 
6_ ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL / o;sf] ;xfos sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/sf] k|ult / cfly{s jif{sf] cGTodf /x]sf] 
l:yltsf] k"jf{nf]sg 
o; sDkgLsf] dlN6kf]v/f 8]enkd]G6 k|f=ln= Pj+ rGb|flul/ lxN; Kof/fUnfOl8ª ln=ul/ b'O{j6f ;xfos 
sDkgLx? /x]sf 5g\ / tL dWo] rGb|flul/ lxN; Kof/fUnfOl8ª ln=sf] xfn;Dd s'g} klg sf/f]jf/ ;+rfngdf 
cfPsf] 5}g .  
 
7_ sDkgL tyf To;sf] ;xfos sDkgLn] cfly{s jif{df ;DkGg u/]sf k|d'v sf/f]jf/x? / ;f] cjlwdf 
sDkgLsf] sf/f]jf/df cfPsf dxTjk"0f{ kl/jt{g  
sDkgLsf] d'Vo sf/f]jf/ k|aGwkqdf pNn]v eP cg';f/ ko{6g Joj;fo;+u ;DalGwt /x]sf] 5 / o;df 
pNn]lvt cfly{s jif{df s'g} k|sf/sf] kl/jt{g ePsf] 5}g . ;fy}, ;xfos sDkgLx?sf] xsdf ;d]t 
k|aGwkqdf pNn]lvt afx]ssf s'g} k|sf/sf sf/f]af/x? gePsf] .  
 
8_ ljut cf=j=df sDkgLsf] cfwf/e"t z]o/wgLx?n] sDkgLnfO{ pknAw u/fPsf] hfgsf/L  
gePsf] . 
 
9_ ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf ;+rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx?n] lnPsf] z]o/ :jfldTjsf] ljj/0f / sDkgLsf] 
z]o/ sf/f]af/df lghx? ;+nUg /x]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwdf lghx?af6 sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] hfgsf/L . 
sDkgLdf sfo{/t ;+rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx?sf nflu tkzLn adf]lhdsf] z]o/ :jfldTj k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 . 

s|=z+= ljj/0f Kfb z]o/ lsQf 
! x]d/fh 9sfn cWoIf @(,$#,##* 
@ sNof0f u'?Ë ;b:o *,$^,!!# 
# gj/fh g]kfn ;b:o @,!^,*#* 
$ lblnk z]v/ >]i7 ;b:o !#,%)) 
% lai0f' k|= k/fh'nL :jtGq ;+rfns ;b:o ) 
^ c?0f k|wfg k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t ) 

o; sDkgLsf] hfgsf/Ldf /x]sf] ;"rgfx?sf] cfwf/df o; cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ df sDkgLdf sfo{/t 
kbflwsf/Lx? tyf sDkgLsf ;+rfnsx?af6 sDkgLsf] z]o/ sf/f]af/df s'g} k|sf/sf] ;+nUgtf g/x]sf] . 
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0f_ ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL;+u ;DalGwt ;Demf}tfx?df s'g} ;~rfns tyf lghsf] glhssf] gft]bf/sf] 
JolQmut :jfy{sf] af/]df pknAw u/fO{Psf] hfgsf/Lsf] Joxf]/f  
JolQmut :jfy{ aflemg] s'g} ;Demf}tf gePsf] . 
 
t_ sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] z]o/ cfkm}n] vl/b u/]sf] eP To;/L cfkm\gf] z]o/ vl/b ug'{sf] sf/0f, To:tf] z]o/sf] 
;+Vof / c+lst d"No tyf To;/L vl/b u/] afkt sDkgLn] e'QmfgL u/]sf] /sd  
sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] z]o/ cfkm}n] vl/b u/]sf] 5}g .  
 
y_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf] lj:t[t ljj/0f 
sDkgL ;+rfngsf] nflu ljz]ifu/L ;+rfns tyf Joj:yfkg b'j} kIfsf] dxTjk"0f{ lhDd]jf/L /xG5 / o;sf 
nflu tklznsf  k|of;x? ul/Psf] 5 M 
!= o; sDkgLaf6 ljleGg ;/f]sf/jfnf lgsfox? h:t} g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{, g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh, g]kfn ko{6g 
ljefu, pBf]u ljefu, lhNnf l8lehg jg sfof{no, ef}lts k"jf{wf/ tyf oftfot dGqfno, sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] 
sfof{no nufotdf tf]lsPsf] ;dfojlw leq k|ltj]bgx? a'emfpFb} cfO{/x]sf] 5 .  

@= g]kfn ko{6g af]8{, xf]6n Pzf]l;o;g, Pj+ ko{6g ljefuaf6 a]nf a]nfdf x'g] u/]sf] cg'udg tyf lg/LIf0fsf] 
cj;/df lbO{Psf ;Nnfx ;'emfjx?nfO{ kl/kfngf ug]{ u/]sf] 5 .   

#= sDkgL leq/x]sf ljleGg ljefux?sf] sfdsf/jfxLnfO{ r':tb'?:t /fvL ;xh tl/sfaf6 ;+rfng ug{sf 
nflu x/]s ljefudf a}7s a;L cfGtl/s ;d:ofx? ;dfwfg ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . 

$= sDkgLdf /x]sf ljleGg pk ;ldltx?sf] a}7s a;L ;ldltx?sf] lg0f{o adf]lhd ck/]zgnfO{ sfof{Gjogdf 
NofO{Psf] 5 .  

%= jflif{s n]vfk/LIf0fjf6 cf}NofO{Psf ljleGg ;Nnfx, ;'emfj tyf lgb]{zgx?nfO{ kl/kfngf ub}{ cfPsf] 5 .  

b_ s'n Joj:yfkg vr{sf] ljj/0f  
o; sDkgLsf] Joj:yfkg vr{ lgDg jdf]lhd /x]sf] 5 . 

-?k}ofdf_ 
ljj/0f  cf= j= @)*!.@)*@ cf= j= @)*).@)*! km/s km/s -cg'kftdf_ 
sd{rf/L Joj:yfkg vr{        178,044,839          170,420,036           7,624,804  4.47% 
k|zf;lgs tyf ;+rfng vr{         226,290,850          234,641,582           (8,350,732) -3.56% 
s'n vr{     404,335,690      405,061,618         (725,928) -0.18% 

 

w_ n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf ;b:ox?sf] gfdfjnL, lghx?n] k|fKt u/]sf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwf, ;f] ;ldltn] 
u/]sf] sfd sf/jfxLsf] ljj/0f / ;f] ;ldltn] s'g} ;'emfj lbPsf] eP ;f] sf] ljj/0f 

!= sDkgLsf] n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt ;b:ox?sf] gfd lgDg /x]sf] 5 M  

Kfb k'/f gfd y/ 
;+of]hs >L lai0f' k|= k/fh'nL 
;b:o >L gj/fh g]kfn 

 
@= n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltn] u/]sf] sfd sf/jfxLsf] ljj/0f  
n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltn] n]vfk/LIfsaf6 k|fKt k|ltj]bgsf] lj:t[t ?kdf cWoog u/L sDkgLsf] ljQLo l:ylt, 
cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL, hf]lvd Joj:yfkg, P]g÷lgod / lgb]{zgsf] cg'kfngf cflb laifox?df ;~rfns 
;ldltnfO{ ;'wf/sf] nflu ;'´fj k]z ug]{ u/]sf] 5 . ;ldltn] cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0fsf] l;nl;nfdf b]lvPsf] 
s}lkmot eP To;sf] l;kmfl/; ;lxt ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ hfgsf/L lbg] ub{5 . oBlk pQm cjlwdf s'g} 
s}lkmot gb]lvPsf] cjut u/fpFb5f} . pQm ;ldltsf] a}7sdf ljleGg ljifodf lj:t't hfgsf/L k|fKt ug{sf] 
nflu cfjZostf cg';f/ sDkgLsf kbflwsf/Lx?nfO{ ;d]t cfdGq0f ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 .    
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#= n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltn] cf= j= @)*!÷*@ df lbPsf] d'Vo ;'´fjx?  
 ;ldltaf6 sDkgLsf :jtGq n]vfk/LIfsx?af6 ul/Psf] n]vfk/LIf0f kZrft k|:t't ul/Psf] k|ltj]bg pk/ 

Joj:yfkg ;ldltsf ;b:ox?;Fu a;L, 5nkmn u/L cf}nfOPsf sdLsdhf]/L tyf ljifoj:t' Pj+ ;Nnfx, 
;'emfjx?nfO{ sfof{Gjogsf nflu lgb]{zg lbOPsf] 5 . 

 ;ldltaf6 :jtGq n]vfk/LIfsx?af6 k|:t't k|ltj]bgsf af/]df ;+rfns ;ldltdf ;d]t hfgsf/L u/fOPsf] 
5 . 

 ;ldltaf6 n]vfk/LIfssf] lgo'lQm Pj+ lghsf] kfl/>lds lgw{f/0fsf nflu ;+rfns ;ldltdf l;kmfl/; 
ul/Psf] 5 .  

 
g_ ;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sDkgLsf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf lghsf] glhssf gft]bf/ jf lgh ;+nUg 
/x]sf] kmd{, sDkgL jf ;+ul7t ;+:yfn] sDkgLnfO{ s'g} /sd a'emfpg afFsL eP ;f] s'/f  
gePsf] . 
 
k_ ;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfnsx?nfO{ cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ df e'QmfgL ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, eQf, tyf ;'ljwf 
/sd  
cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df ;+rfns ;b:ox?nfO{ ;+rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s eQfsf ?kdf kfFr nfv ;f7L xhf/ 
e'QmfgL ePsf] . cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df sDkgLsf k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t >L c?0f k|wfgnfO{ kfl/>lds, eQf, 
tyf ;'ljwf dfkm{t ?= &^ nfv %& xhf/ $%# -s/ ;lxt_ k|bfg ul/Psf] . 
   
km_ bkmf !$! adf]lhd ;DklQ vl/b jf laqmL u/]sf] ljj/0f  
bkmf !$! adf]lhd vl/bsf] ljj/0f tkzLn adf]lhd /x]sf] 5 M 
s|=;+= ljj/0f /sd ? 

! ejg tkm{ 1,749,186 
@ sDKo"6/ tyf pks/0fx? 1,150,338 
# kmlg{r/ tyf lkmS:r;{  4,640,020 
$ KnfG6 tyf d]l;g/L pks/0fx? 26,169,340 
% ;fxl;s v]n ultljlwsf ;+/rgf 176,991 
^ clkm;sf pks/0fx? tyf cGo 4,915,450 
& ;jf/L ;fwg tyf uf8Lx? 8,490,442 
* ;km\6j]o/ 25,000 
  hDdf 47,316,769 

 
a_ bkmf !&% adf]lhd ;Da4 sDkgL aLr ePsf] sf/f]af/sf] ljj/0f  
gePsf] . 
 
e_ sDkgL P]g tyf k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf v'nfpg' kg]{ cGo s'g} s'/f   
gePsf] . 
 
d_ ;+rfns ;ldltsf] sfd st{Jo 
sDkgL P]g / lgodfjnLdf n]lvPsf s'/fx? / ;fwf/0f ;efsf] lg0f{osf] clwgdf /xL sDkgLsf] 
;Dk"0f{ sf/f]af/sf] Joj:yfkg, clwsf/x?sf] k|of]u / st{Josf] kfngf ;~rfnsx?n] ;fd"lxs ?kdf 
;~rfns ;ldlt dfkm{t ug]{ ub{5g\ .  
 
o_ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s  
cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ df hDdf !@ k6s ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s a;]sf] 5 . 
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/_ cGo cfjZos s'/fx?  
gePsf] . 
 
n_ lwtf]kq btf{ tyf lgisf;g lgodfjnL @)&# sf] lgod @^, pk lgod-@_ ;+u ;DalGwt cg';'rL 
!% cg';f/sf] cGo ljj/0f  

 

!= ;+rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg  
Jfflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;+nUg ul/Psf] . 
 

@= n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg  
Jfflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;+nUg ul/Psf] . 
 

#= n]vfk/LIf0f ePsf] ljlQo ljj/0f  
Jfflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;+nUg ul/Psf] . 
 

$= sfg'gL sf/jfxL ;DaGwL ljj/0f  
s_ o; sDkgLsf ;+:yfks jf ;~rfnsn] jf ;+:yfks jf ;~rfnssf] lj?4df k|rlnt lgodsf] 
cj1f jf kmf}hbf/L ck/fw ;DaGwdf s'g} d'2f bfo/ gePsf] . 
v_ sDkgLsf] s'g} klg ;+:yfks jf ;~rfns lj?4 cfly{s ck/fw ;DaGwL s'g} d'2f gePsf] . 
u_ sDkgLaf6 ;d]t s'g} k|sf/sf] s'g} ;+:yf, JolQm, lgsfo lj?4df k|rlnt lgodsf] cj1f jf 
kmf}hbf/L jf cfly{s ck/fw ;DaGwdf s'g} d'2f bfo/ gePsf] . 

  

 %=;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] z]o/ sf/f]af/ ;DaGwL ljZn]if0f  
s_ g]kfn lwtf]kq ahf/df o; ;+:yfsf] z]o/ sf/f]af/df ahf/n] k|ltkflbt u/]sf] d'No tyf dfGotf 
cg'?k g} x'g] u/]sf] . 
v_ ;ldIff cjlwsf] z]o/sf] clwstd d'No, Go"gtd d'No, clGtd d'No, s'n sf/f]af/ ePsf] lbg 
tyf sf/f]af/ ;+Vof g]kfn :6s PS;r]Ghsf] j]j;fO6 www.nepalstock.com.np cg';f/ lgDg 
adf]lhd 5 . 

Cjlw 

z]o/ sf/f]af/�d'No -?_ s'n z]o/sf] sf/f]af/�lbg / ;+Vof 

clwstd 
d"No 

Go"gtd 
d"No 

clGtd 
d"No 

sf/f]af/ 
ePsf] s'n 

lbg 

sf/f]af/ 
;+Vof 

s'n sf/f]af/ 
;+Vof 

klxnf] q}dfl;s @)*! 
cflZjg d;fGt 

!#@) *^% ($* %& $),#@@ $!,@@,(%) 

bf]>|f] q}dfl;s @)*! 
Kff}if d;fGt 

!)!! **# **# %% !&,*#^ !*,%$,#!@ 

t]>f] q}dfl;s @)*! 
r}q d;fGt 

(^&=*) *%@=@) *%#=)! %^ !$,(!@ !%,*&,(!% 

rf}yf] q}dfl;s @)*@ 
cfiff9 d;fGt 

!)$^=*$ *$%=!( (%^=)@ ^# @%,&(% $#,)*,@*# 

 
j_ ;d:of tyf r'gf}tL  
sf]/f]gf dxfdf/Laf6 pTkGg k|lts"n k|efj, ko{6s ;DaGwL ef}lts k"jf{wf/x?sf] kof{Kt gx'g', ljb]zL 
d'b|fsf] ljlgdodf eO/xg] ptf/ r9fj, ck|Tofl;t ?kdf ko{6g If]qdf x'g] aGb tyf x8\tfn h;sf 
sf/0fn] cfGtl/s tyf afXo ko{6sdf kg]{ gs/fTds k|efj, crfgs ?kdf b]zdf cfO{kg]{ c;xh 
kl/l:ylt h:t} /fhg}lts c;xhtf, k|s[lts tyf b}ljs k|sf]kx? cflbnfO{ aflx/L ;d:ofx?sf] ?kdf 
lnOPsf] 5 . dfly pNn]lvt ;d:of tyf r'gf}tLx? dWo] sfa'eGbf aflx/sf] ;d:of afx]s cGo ;d:of 
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tyf r'gf}tLx?nfO{ o; sDkgLn] cfufdL lbgx?df ko{6sx?nfO{ lbO{g] ;]jfsf] :t/f]GgtL tyf sDkgLsf] 
nIo cg';f/sf] cfDbfgL a9fpg] gLlt cg'?k gofF ahf/ tyf ko{6sx?;Dd k'Ug ;Sg] lsl;dsf] 
/0fgLlt ckgfO{ ;d:of ;dfwfg ub}{ hfg] gLlt lnO{Psf] 5 . 
 

z_ ;+:yfut ;'zf;g 
Pp6f /fd|f] ;+:yfut ;'zf;g canDag u/]sf] sDkgLn] cfkm\gf nufgLstf{x? / t];|f] kIfsf] ljZjf; 
cfh{g ug{ ;S5 . o;} dfGotfnfO{ o; sDkgLn] cfTd;fy u/L ;Dk"0f{ sf/f]af/ OdfGbf/Lsf ;fy 
kf/bzL{ ?kdf u/]sf] 5 . ;fy} cfly{s lqmofsnfkx? klg kf/bzL{ ?kdf x'g' kb{5 eGg] dfGotf /fVb5 
/ ;f]xL cg';f/ kf/bzL{ ?kdf n]vf >]:tf /fVg] ub{5 . sDkgLnfO{ ;'zfl;t 9+un] ;+rfng Pj+ Joj:yfkg 
ug{sf lgldQ sDkgL Joj:yfkg ;b}j ;hu Pj+ ;+j]bgzLn /x]sf] 5 . sDkgLaf6 ePsf ;+:yfut 
;'zf;gsf k|d'v ultljlwx? o; k|sf/ 5g\ M 
!= sDkgLaf6 ;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;DalGwt g]kfn ;/sf/, g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{, g]kfn :6s PS:r]Gh 

ln=, l;=l8=P;= P08 lSNol/Ë ln= nufot cGo ;DalGwt lgsfox?af6 k|ltkflbt P]g, lgod, 
lgodfjnL, ljlgodfjnL lgb]{lzsf, sfo{ljlwx?sf] kfngf . 

@= sDkgLsf] cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL, gLlt, lgodfjnL tyf ;DalGwt sfg"gx?sf] cg'kfngf . 
#= sDkgL ;+rfngsf ljleGg k|sf/sf ultljlw tyf k|ultsf] af/]df Joj:yfkg ;ldltsf] a}7sdf 
lgoldt ;ldIff . 
 
if_ wGojfb 1fkg 
cGTodf, o; sDkgLsf]] !^cf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f;efdf k|ToIf jf ck|ToIf ?kdf tkfO{x?sf] ul/dfdo 
;xeflutf hgfO{ cf�cfkm\gf] tkm{af6 o; sDkgLnfO{ cd"No dfu{bz{g, cfjZos JolQmut ;/;Nnfx, 
;'emfj tyf ;xeflutfsf] nflu ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx? k|lt wGojfb ;lxt 
cfef/ JoQm ug{ rfxG5f+}  . 
o; sDkgLnfO{ Jojl:yt ?kdf ;+rfng ug{sf] nflu cxf]/fq ?kdf vl6O{ sfd ug'{ x'g] Joj:yfkg 
nufot ;Dk'0f{ sd{rf/L ,z]o/wgLHo"x?nfO{ wGoafb lbg rfxG5f}+ . sDkgLnfO{ k|ToIf jf ck|ToIf ?kdf 
;xof]u k'¥ofpg' x'g] g]kfn ;/sf/sf laleGg dGqfnox?, ;DalGwt ljefux?, lgods lgsfosf 
k|ltlglwHo"x?, ljleGg :yfgLo lgsfosf k|ltlglwHo"x?, /fhg}lts bnsf k|ltlglwHo"x?, ljleGg 
laqm]tfx?, 6«fen Ph]G6x?, k/fdz{bftfx?, ;Dks{stf{x?, ;]jf k|bfosx?, a+}s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?, 
Jofj;flos ;xof]uLx? / cGo Ph]G;Lx?sf ;fy} z'elrGtsx?k|lt xflb{s s[t1tf JoQm ub} wGojfb 
lbg rfxG5f} . 
 
cGTodf, cfufdL lbgx?df klg o:t} ;xof]u / ;fy /lx/xg]] ljZjf; lnPsf 5f} . 
 

wGojfb . 
ldlt @)*@÷)*÷@( 
 

;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 
x]d /fh 9sfn 
cWoIf 
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Cable Car Segment Highlights  

Chart 01

Chart 02 Chart 03
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Total Nepalese SAARC Foreigners

621 
541 

608 
729 753 791 

1,236 

569 

1,564 

1,969 
2,105 

1,717 

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

2076/2077 2077/2078 2078/2079 2079/2080 2080/2081 2081/2082

No of Visitors per Day and Average Ticket 

Rate for Cable Car Rides

Avg Ticket Rate No of Visitors per day

Top Bottom Station Highlights

Chart 04
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Ticket Revenue (NPR in Lakhs) 
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Resort Highlights

Chart 05 Chart 06

Chart 07

Chart 09

Chart 08
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Reveune Summary for various fiscal years (NPR in lakhs)

 Ticket Revenue  Top/Bottom Revenue  Amusement Revenue  Resort Revenue
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Income Details (NPR in Lakhs)
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Chart 10

Chart 11
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Figures in NPR

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year 

Assets

Non-Current Assets

   Property, Plant and Equipment 4.1 3,210,861,515             3,189,146,470          3,034,961,515               3,013,246,470                

   Intangible Assets 4.1 3,489,698                     4,479,171                  3,489,698                       4,479,171                        

   Right of use Assets 4.1 B 24,848,100                   25,768,400                39,377,144                    41,205,509                      

   Investment in subsidiary 4.2 A -                                 -                              180,500,000                  180,500,000                   

   Other Investments 4.2 B 145,200,000                 135,200,000              145,200,000                  135,200,000                   

   Deferred Tax Assets 4.3 -                                 -                              -                                   -                                    

   Non Current Deposits 4.4 608,030                        540,775                     608,030                          540,775                           

Total Non-Current Assets 3,385,007,343             3,355,134,816          3,404,136,386               3,375,171,925                

Current Assets

   Inventory 4.5 49,105,815                   40,688,907                49,105,815                    40,688,907                      

   Current Tax Assets 4.6 6,701,648                     9,277,531                  5,921,648                       8,692,531                        

   Other Current Assets 4.7 108,892,549                 80,610,673                163,654,001                  122,258,190                   

   Receivables and current deposit 4.8 32,727,002                   35,968,493                32,305,453                    35,548,444                      

   Cash and cash equivalents 4.9 85,526,860                   131,380,218              85,430,160                    131,282,828                   

Total Current Assets 282,953,873                297,925,822             336,417,077                  338,470,901                   

Total Assets 3,667,961,216             3,653,060,639          3,740,553,464               3,713,642,826                

Equity and Liabilities

  Equity

  Share Capital 4.10 A 1,534,091,000             1,534,091,000          1,534,091,000               1,534,091,000                

  Reserves 4.10 B 871,724                        (177,831,181)            93,290,100                    (94,091,480)                    

Total Equity 1,534,962,724             1,356,259,819          1,627,381,100               1,439,999,520                

Non- Current Liabilities

  Long Term Borrowings 4.11 1,406,522,237             1,692,720,930          1,406,522,237               1,692,720,930                

  Employee Benefit 4.12 24,158,998                   19,702,473                24,158,998                    19,702,473                      

  Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.3 197,780,659                 148,057,438              200,872,817                  147,444,531                   

  Lease Liability 4.1 B 34,535,008                   33,359,099                52,075,024                    51,077,295                      

Total Non-current Liabilities 1,662,996,902             1,893,839,939          1,683,629,076               1,910,945,228                

Current Liabilities

  Short Term Borrowings 4.13 312,805,629                 245,722,789              312,805,629                  245,722,789                   

  Employee Benefit 4.14 42,572,069                   45,655,032                42,572,069                    45,655,032                      

  Trade and Other Payables 4.15 114,623,893                 111,583,059              74,165,590                    71,320,256                      

Total Current Liabilities 470,001,591                402,960,880             429,543,287                  362,698,077                   

Total Liabilities 2,132,998,493             2,296,800,820          2,113,172,363               2,273,643,305                

Total Equity and Liabilities 3,667,961,216             3,653,060,639          3,740,553,464               3,713,642,826                

Significant Accounting policies and notes to the account is an intergal  part of Financial statement.

Binayak Pokhrel                       Arun Pradhan Kalyan Gurung                              

Finance Head                               CEO     Director                                                             

                                  Chartered Accountants

Dilip Shekhar Shrestha Nawaraj Nepal Bishnu Prasad Parajuli

     Director                          Director   Independent Director

Date: 2082.08.29

Place: Kathmandu

Chandragiri Hills Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As on 16th July 2025  (32nd Ashadh 2082)

Particulars Notes
Group Standalone

    Chairman                                       Partner

                                          PYC & Associates

                                     As per our report of even date  attached

                                Auditor

Hem Raj Dhakal                                Yuddha Raj Oli,FCA
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Figures in NPR

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year 

Revenue from Operations 4.16 902,416,567          1,000,115,981         902,416,567         1,000,115,981     

Less: Operation Expenses 4.17 180,626,367          181,239,708            180,626,367         181,239,708         

Net Operating Revenue 721,790,200          818,876,272            721,790,200        818,876,272        

Other Income 4.18 30,938,169            37,236,746              30,938,169           37,236,746           

Administrative Expenses 4.19 51,900,407            70,807,996              36,836,782           49,400,346           

Personnel Expenses 4.20 178,044,839          170,420,036            178,044,839         170,420,036         

Advertisement Expenses 4.21 8,827,701              4,001,527                8,827,701             4,001,527             

Depreciation and Ammortization Expenses 4.22 122,701,422          118,234,499            123,609,487         119,142,565         

Profit from operations 391,254,000          492,648,960            405,409,560        513,148,545        

Finance Expenses 4.23 162,712,112          237,855,995            164,483,932         239,644,012         

Profit Before Tax 228,541,888          254,792,965            240,925,628        273,504,532        

Income Tax Expense

Deferred Tax (Income)/Expenses 4.3 49,723,221            73,858,102              53,428,286           73,529,876           

Net Profit for the Year 178,818,667          180,934,863            187,497,342        199,974,656        

Profit/Loss from Discontinued operation

Earning per share

Earnings Per Share (NPR) 11.66                      11.79                        12.22                     13.04                     

Diluted Earnings Per Share (NPR) 11.66                      11.79                        12.22                     13.04                     

Significant Accounting policies and notes to the account is an intergal  part of Financial statement.

Binayak Pokhrel                       Arun Pradhan Hem Raj Dhakal Kalyan Gurung                              

Finance Head                               CEO     Chairman     Director                                                             

Dilip Shekhar Shrestha Nawaraj Nepal Bishnu Prasad Parajuli

     Director                          Director   Independent Director

Date: 2082.08.29

Place: Kathmandu

Chandragiri Hills Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 16th July 2025 (32nd Ashadh 2082)

Particulars Notes
Group Standalone

                Chartered Accountants

                                     As per our report of even date  attached

                     Auditor

                  Yuddha Raj Oli,FCA

                   Partner

                           PYC & Associates
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Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year 

Profit for the Year 178,818,667                180,934,863         187,497,342         199,974,656         

Other Comprehensive Income: -                                 -                          -                          -                          

Items that will be reclassified to Income Statement: -                                 -                          -                          -                          

Investment in subsidiary -                                 -                          -                          -                          

Investment in Unquoted Shares -                                 -                          -                          -                          

Deferred Tax Implication of acutuarial gain/ (losses) -                                 -                          -                          -                          

Items that may be reclasssfied subsequently to income -                                 -                          -                          -                          

Avaiable-for-sale-investments: -                                 -                          -                          -                          

Net Valuation gains taken to equity -                                 -                          -                          -                          

Reclassfied to income statement -                                 -                          -                          -                          

Other Comprehensive income for the year net of taxation -                                 -                          -                          -                          

Total Comprehensive Income 178,818,667                180,934,863         187,497,342         199,974,656         

Significant Accounting policies and notes to the account is an intergal  part of Financial statement.

                                     As per our report of even date  attached

Binayak Pokhrel                       Arun Pradhan Hem Raj Dhakal Kalyan Gurung          

Finance Head                               CEO     Chairman     Director                                                              Partner

  Chartered Accountants

Dilip Shekhar Shrestha Nawaraj Nepal Bishnu Prasad Parajuli

     Director                          Director   Independent Director

Date: 2082.08.29

Place: Kathmandu

   Auditor

             Yuddha Raj Oli,FCA

   PYC & Associates

Chandragiri Hills Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 16th July 2025 (32nd Ashadh 2082)
Figures in NPR

Particulars
Group Standalone
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Figures in NPR

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year 

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit Before Tax 228,541,888           254,792,965             240,925,628             273,504,532           

Adjustments for non-cash items and non-operating adjustments

Prior period Adjustment -                           3,250                         -                             -                           

Depreciation and ammortization expenses 122,701,422           118,234,499             123,609,487             119,142,565           

Finance Expenses 162,712,112           237,855,995             164,483,932             239,644,012           

Changes in Operating assets and liabilities

Changes in operating assets (30,948,664)            (31,516,861)              (43,866,099)              (50,485,216)            

Changes in operating liabilities 4,414,395               (51,515,157)              4,218,895                 (51,590,797)            

Net Cash from Operating Activities 487,421,154           527,854,691             489,371,843            530,215,096           

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment (143,426,994)          (74,116,884)              (144,335,059)           (75,024,949)            

Changes in Right of use assets 920,300                   920,300                     1,828,365                 1,828,365               

Investment in Other Investment (10,000,000)            20,000,000               (10,000,000)              20,000,000             

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (152,506,693)         (53,196,584)              (152,506,693)           (53,196,584)            

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Calls in advance received

Dividend paid to ordinary shareholders, net of scrip -                           

Share capital issued -                           -                             -                           

Dividend Distribution Tax -                           -                             

Changes in Lease Liability 1,175,910               1,232,645                 997,729                    1,070,663               

Finance Expenses (162,712,112)          (237,855,995)            (164,483,932)           (239,644,012)          

Share Registrar Fees (115,763)                 (115,763)                   

Proceed /(Repayment) of Borrowings (219,115,853)          (346,435,569)            (219,115,853)           (346,435,569)          

Net Cash flows from financing activities (380,767,818)         (583,058,918)           (382,717,818)           (585,008,918)         

Net Increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (45,853,357)            (108,400,811)           (45,852,668)             (107,990,406)         

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 131,380,218           239,781,028             131,282,828             239,273,233           

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash & cash equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 85,526,860             131,380,218             85,430,160               131,282,828           

Significant Accounting policies and notes to the account is an intergal  part of Financial statement.

                                     As per our report of even date  attached

Binayak Pokhrel                       Arun Pradhan Hem Raj Dhakal Kalyan Gurung             

Finance Head                               CEO     Chairman     Director                    

Dilip Shekhar Shrestha Nawaraj Nepal Bishnu Prasad Parajuli

     Director                          Director   Independent Director

Date: 2082.08.29

Place: Kathmandu

Chandragiri Hills Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

Consolidsated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 16th July 2025 (32nd Ashadh 2082)

Particulars
Group Standalone

              Auditor

                              Yuddha Raj Oli,FCA

                             Partner

                             PYC & Associates

                              Chartered Accountants
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Particulars Amount in NPR

Net Profit for the period ended on 32 Ashadh 2082 187,497,342                         

1. Appropriations

a. Corporate social responsibility fund (1,874,973)                           

b. Other -                                       

Profit or (Loss) before regulatory adjustment 185,622,368                         

Regulatory Adjustment:

a. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) -                                       

b. Fair Value Reserve -                                       

Net Profit or (loss) for the year ended on 32 Ashad, 2082 available for distribution 185,622,368                         

Opening Retained Earnings as on Shrawan 1, 2081 (97,380,218)                         

Adjustments(+/-) (115,763)                              

Distribution:

Bonus Share Issued -                                       

Cash Dividend Paid -                                       

Total Distributable Profit or (Loss) as on Year End 32 Ashadh 2082 88,126,388                          

Binayak Pokhrel                       Arun Pradhan                        Hem Raj Dhakal                                 Kalyan Gurung                  Yuddha Raj Oli,FCA

Finance Head                               CEO                                       Chairmain                                             Director                         Partner

           Chartered Accountants

Dilip Shekhar Shrestha                             Nawaraj Nepal                                 Bishnu Prasad Parajuli

     Director                                                       Director                                         Independent Director

Date: 2082.08.29

Place: Kathmandu

                                                                                                                                                                                                                         Auditor

                PYC & Associates

Chandragiri Hills Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss

As on 32nd Ashadh 2081/82

Significant Accounting policies and notes to the account is an intergal  part of Financial statement.

                                     As per our report of even date  attached
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Chandragiri Hills Limited 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts for the Year ended 16th July 2025 

 

 

Page 1 of 33 

Chandragiri Hills Limited 

Kathmandu, Nepal 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 

Fiscal Year (2024/25) 

 

1. General Information of Reporting Entity 

Chandragiri Hills Limited (herein referred as �Company�), previously named as Kathmandu Fun Park 

Pvt. Ltd., was incorporated as Pvt. Ltd Co. at the Office of Company Registrar having its registration no 

64533/067/067 with registered address as Panipokhari, Kathmandu, Nepal. Later, the Company has 

been converted into Public Limited Company having its Registration no 124325/070/071 with effect 

from 2071/03/32. 

 

The authorized Capital of the Company is Rs. 2 Arba and its Issued Capital is Rs. 1.53 Arba. The paid-

up Capital of the Company is Rs. 1.53 Arba as on 2082/03/32. 

The Company has started its operation from Shrawan 24, 2073. The Company is principally engaged 

in operation of cable car, restaurants & retail stores, resort and amusement park. 

 

The consolidated financial statement of Company as at fiscal year ended 16th July, 2025 comprises the 

Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the �Group� and individually referred to as 

�Standalone�) 

 

2. Basis of Preparation 
 

2.1 Statement of Compliance 

Standalone Financial Statements of the Company comprises of Financial Statement of the Company 

prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Framework (NFRS) issued by the Accounting 

Standards Board of Nepal. 

The consolidated financial statements of the Group comprise of Consolidated Statement of Financial 

Position, Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive 

Income, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared 

as per NFRS 10 �Consolidated Financial Statements�. The consolidation principles remain unchanged 

as against Previous Year. The consolidated statements comprise of account balances of subsidiaries 

Multi-Pokhara Development Pvt. Ltd. and Chandragiri Hills Paragliding Ltd. 

 

2.2 Accounting Conventions 

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared at the historical cost convention except 

for certain financial instruments, which are measured at their fair values as disclosed in the respective 

notes as required. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer 

liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless 

of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.  
 

If third party information, such as market quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, 

then the management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion 

that these valuations meet the requirements of the approved accounting standards as applicable, 

including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified. 
 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market observable data as 

far as possible. Fair Value for measurement and/ or disclosure purposes in these Financial Statements 

is determined on such a basis, except for, measurements that have some similarities to Fair Value but 

are not Fair Value, such as Net Realizable Value in NAS 2 �Inventories� or Value in use in NAS 36 

�Impairment of Assets�.  
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The Financial Statements have been prepared on a Going Concern basis where the accounting policies 

and judgments as required by the Standards are consistently used and in case of deviations disclosed 

specifically. 

  

2.3 Reporting Period and approval of Financial Statements 

The Company/Group prepares Financial Statement in accordance with the Nepalese Financial Year 

using Nepalese Calendar. 

The corresponding dates for Gregorian Calendar are as follows: 

* SFP = Statement of financial position 
 

The accompanied Financial Statements have been adopted by the Board of Directors on its board 

meeting held on Mangshir 29, 2082 BS, and have been recommended for approval by shareholders in 

the Annual General Meeting to be held on Poush 23 , 2082 BS. 

 

2.4 Functional and Presentation Currency 

The Financial Statements are denominated in the nearest Nepalese Rupees, which is functional and 

presentation Currency of the Company. 

 

2.5 Presentations 

For presentation of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Assets and Liabilities have been 

bifurcated into Current and Non-Current, by their respective maturities and are disclosed in the Notes. 

All Assets apart from Property Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets, Non-Current Deposits, 

Investments and Deferred Tax Assets are taken as Current Assets unless specific additional disclosures 

are made in the Notes for Current and Non-Current distinction. All Liabilities apart from Long Term 

Loan, Deferred Tax Liability and Net Defined Benefit Obligations are taken as Current Liabilities unless 

specific additional disclosures are made in the Notes for Current and Non-Current distinction.  

The Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss has been prepared using classification �by nature� in 

accrual basis. The Cash Flow from operation within the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has 

been prepared using the Indirect Method. 

 

2.6 Accounting Convention, Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments 

The management, while complying with reporting standards, makes critical accounting judgment in 

respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimates or assumptions to be 

followed could materially affect the Company�s reported financial position, results or cash flows. 

Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
 

Where accounting policy is generally applicable to the specific item, the policy is described with that 

relevant note. The Company, as per the requirements of NFRS, exercises judgment in making 

accounting estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 

Revisions to estimates are recognized prospectively. Some of the major areas where various 

Particulars Nepalese Calendar Date / Period Gregorian Calendar Date / 

Period 

Comparative SFP* Date 31st Ashadh 2081 15th July 2024 

Comparative reporting period 1st Shrawan 2080 � 31st Ashadh 

2081 

17th July 2023 � 15th July 

2024 

NFRS SFP* Date 32nd Ashadh 2082 16th July 2025 

NFRS reporting period 1st Shrawan 2081 � 32nd Ashadh 

2082 

16th July 2024 � 16th July 

2025 
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assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company�s financial statements or where judgment 

was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows: 

1. Fair value of Financial Instruments 

2. Estimate of useful life of property, plant and equipment  

3. Estimate of useful life of intangible assets  

4. Classification of financial assets and liabilities 

5. Provision for taxation  

6. Assessment of current as well as deferred tax 

7. Defined benefit obligations 

8. Provisions, commitments and contingencies. 

9. Impairment loss on financial and non-financial assets 

 

2.7 Change in Accounting Policies 

The Company applies its accounting policies consistently from year to year except where any 

deviations are made. The same has been explicitly mentioned in relevant note. 

 

2.8 Materiality and Aggregation 

In compliance with NAS 1 �Presentation of Financial Statements� each material class of similar items 

are presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or functions are 

presented separately unless they are immaterial. 

 

2.9 Discounting 

Discounting has been applied where Assets and Liabilities are non-current and the impact of the 

discounting is material. Since impact of discounting in our Financial Statement is immaterial, we 

haven�t applied discounting.  

 

2.10 Offsetting 

Financial Assets and Liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statement of Financial 

Position when and only when the Company has a legal right to set off the amounts, and it intends 

either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.  

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under NFRS, or for gains and 

losses arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the Company�s trading activity. 

 

2.11 Limitation of NFRS Implementation 

If the information is not available and the cost to develop would exceed the benefit derived, such 

exception to NFRS Implementation has been applied and disclosed in respective sections. 

 

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements are set out 

below. These policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated. 

 

3.1 Going Concern 

The management has assessed the Company's ability to continue as a Going Concern and is satisfied 

that it has the resources to continue its business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, 

management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the 

Company�s ability to continue as a Going Concern, and they do not intend either to liquidate or to 

cease operations of it. Therefore, the Financial Statements continue to be prepared on the Going 

Concern basis. 
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3.2 Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rate 

The Company has a policy of converting the foreign currency transactions into functional currency 

using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. 
 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated into the reporting 

currency of the Company using the rates prevailing on the reporting date. The resulting gain or loss 

due to translation is taken to profit or loss. Non-monetary assets are recorded using the rate of 

exchange prevalent as on the date of initial recognition. 

 

3.3 Property, Plant and Equipment 
 

Recognition 

The Company has stated Property, Plant and Equipment at cost of acquisition less accumulated 

depreciation and accumulated impairment provisions, if any when it is probable that future economic 

benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and it can be used for more than one year 

and the cost can be measured reliably. All Property Plant and Equipment are initially recorded at cost. 

Cost includes the acquisition cost or the cost of construction including duties and non-refundable 

taxes, expenses directly related to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for their 

intended use and in the case of qualifying assets, the attributable borrowing costs.  
 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset�s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with the item will flow 

to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any 

component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and 

maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

 

Depreciation 

Depreciation on Property Plant and Equipment other than Freehold Land i.e., the Company�s Freehold 

Building and Machinery, Vehicle and Other Assets is provided on �Straight Line Method (SLM)� based 

on useful life estimated by the management.  
 

The asset's useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the reporting date and the effects of any 

changes in estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis. 

Depreciation on addition/disposal to Property plant and Equipment is calculated day wise basis. The 

estimated useful lives of material asset categories are as follows: 

The life of the Parking & Access Roads, Buildings, Amusement Parks, Resort Interior Furniture and 

Leasehold Improvements are to be depreciated within lease period with Government of Nepal. The 

remaining lease term is 27 Years. 

S. N PPE Description Estimated Useful Life (years) 

1 Land - 

2 Parking & Access Road 27 

3 Building 27 

4 Resort Land & Site Development 27 

5 Amusement Park 27 

6 Other Office Equipment 10 

7 Furniture 10 

8 Resort Interior Furniture Work 27 

9 Vehicle 10 

10 Kitchen Equipment 10 

11 Plant & Machinery 25 

12 Leasehold Improvement 27 

13 Computer & Peripherals 10 
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De-recognition of Property Plant and Equipment  

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 

benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the 

disposal or retirement of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined as the difference 

between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in the 

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss. 

 

3.4 Intangible Assets 

Intangible Assets are initially recognized at cost. Subsequently Intangible Assets are carried at cost less 

accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. An Intangible Asset is recognized if it 

is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to 

the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. Internally generated Intangible Asset, excluding 

Capitalized development costs are not Capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in 

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred. 

 

Amortization of Intangible Assets: 

The Company assesses useful lives of Intangible Assets to be either finite or indefinite. An intangible 

asset shall be regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of all of the 

relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected generate 

net cash inflow for the entity. 
 

Amortization is recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss on straight line method (SLM) over the 

estimated useful life of the Intangible Assets from the date that it is available for use since this most 

closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the 

asset. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful 

life are reviewed at least at the end of each financial year. The amortization expense on intangible 

assets with finite lives is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. 
 

Useful Life of Intangible Assets based on SLM is categorized as stated below: 

List of Asset Categories Useful Life (Years) 

Software/Application 15 Years 

 

3.5 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets  

The non-financial assets of the organization, which include Property Plant and Equipment, Inventories 

etc., are subject to impairment assessment if there is any indication that the carrying amount may 

exceed the recoverable value of the assets. Such impairment assessment of assets is done on the basis 

of cash generating unit or if not possible on individual assets. An impairment loss is recognized in the 

Statement of Profit or Loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 
 

Here, the recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value, less cost of disposal & value in use. 

Whereas Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value 

using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 

risk specific to the assets. Since there is no such indication during the end of the financial year that the 

carrying amount of the asset is more than its recoverable amount, impairment has not been 

recognized. 

 

3.6 Investment  
 

Investment in subsidiary  

Subsidiaries are those entities that are controlled by the Company. The Company is presumed to 

control an entity when it is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the 

entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. At each reporting 
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date, the Company reassess whether it controls an entity if facts and circumstances indicate that there 

are changes in one or more elements of control mentioned above. 
 

The financial statement of subsidiaries is fully consolidated from the date on which control is 

transferred to the Company and continues to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases, 

The Financial Statements of the Company�s subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as 

per the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The Company has made investment in Multi 

Pokhara Development Pvt. Ltd. and Chandragiri Hills Paragliding Ltd. which are its subsidiaries.  

There is no indication of impairment on such investments during the financial year. 

 

Investment in Debt and Equity Securities 

Investments held for trading are classified as current assets and are stated at fair value, with any 

resultant gain or loss recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Where the Company has intent 

and ability to hold to maturity, they are stated at amortised cost less impairment losses. Other 

investments held by the Company are classified as being available-for-sale and are stated at fair value, 

with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in the profit or loss statement or Statement of Other 

Comprehensive Income. However, such decision is irrevocable. 
 

All the investment of the Company has been classified as held to maturity and has been recognized as 

financial assets with Fair value through Profit or Loss Statement. There is no indication of impairment 

on such investments during the financial year. 

 

3.7 Financial Instruments: 
 

3.7.1 Financial Assets & Liability 

The Company classifies any assets as Financial Asset if it includes cash, an equity instrument of another 

entity, a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from another entity or exchange 

Financial Assets or Financial Liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially 

favorable to the entity and a contract that will or may be settled in the entity�s own equity instruments. 
 

The Company's principal Financial Assets comprise of assets held at fair value, trade and other 

receivables, inventory, current tax assets, cash as well as advances. 

The Company classifies any liability as Financial Liability if it involves a contractual obligation to deliver 

cash or other financial assets to another entity or to exchange Financial Assets or Financial Liabilities 

with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the entity and contract that 

will or may be settled in the entity�s own equity instruments.  
 

The Company has classified Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities as current and non-current based 

on their nature. 
 

Recognition and Measurement 

The Company recognizes Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities initially at its fair value plus 

transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of the Financial Assets and Financial 

Liabilities, except in the case of Financial Assets and financial liabilities "at Fair value through Profit or 

Loss". The transaction costs of Financial Assets carried "at Fair Value through Profit or Loss" are 

expensed in the Statement of Profit & Loss. 
 

Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets 

i) Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost 

A Financial Asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective 

is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of financial 

asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 

the principal amount outstanding. These instruments are recognized at amortized cost using effective 

interest rate. This classification includes trade receivables, advances and deposit. These instruments 
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are mostly non-interest bearing and where interest component is present the implicit interest rate 

approximates effective interest rate. Therefore, it is assumed that the carrying amount represents the 

amortized cost of the assets. 
 

ii) Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) 

A Financial Asset is measured at Fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a 

business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling 

financial assets and the contractual terms of financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These Financial 

Assets are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of other comprehensive income. 

This classification includes equity securities held to maturity 
 

iii) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) 

A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is measured at FVTPL. These 

financial assets are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of profit or loss. This 

classification includes quoted or unquoted equity securities held for trading.   
 

Subsequent Measurement of Financial Liabilities 

After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profits or loss are 

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are 

recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the liabilities are derecognized, and through 

amortization process. 
 

All Financial Liabilities held by the Company are classified as financial liabilities held at amortized cost 

using effective interest rate. Financial liabilities held by the Company are both interest bearing and 

non-interest bearing.  
 

The non-interest-bearing instruments� carrying value represents the amortized cost. For interest 

bearing financial liabilities which comprises of the bank loans, interest charged by the bank 

approximates effective interest rate and the rate is considered for calculation of amortized cost of 

liability and the finance cost. The effect of initial charges and its impact on effective interest rate is 

considered not material and the carrying value is considered to approximate the amortized cost. 

All the listed ordinary equity shares are measured at fair value using Level 1 input as described in NFRS 

13 �Fair Value Measurement�. Level 1 input is quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market that the 

entity can access at the measurement date. All equity securities whose fair value cannot be obtained 

from the Level 1 and Level 2 inputs are valued using the most recent available Net worth per shares 

to represent the fair value of these investments at the reporting date.  
 

De-recognition 

The Company De-recognizes financial assets when the right to receive cash flows from the assets have 

expired or when it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. If substantially all 

the risks and rewards have been neither retained nor transferred and the Company has retained 

control, the assets continue to be recognized to the extent of the Company�s continuing involvement. 

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or 

expired. 
 

Impairment of Financial Assets 

At each reporting date the Company assesses whether there is any objective indication that an asset 

or a group of financial assets may have been impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable 

amount is determined.  A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment 

losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more 

events occurring after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event), and that loss event (or events) 

has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that 

can be reliably estimated. 
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The Company considers the following factors in assessing objective evidence of impairment:  

 Whether the counterparty is in default of payments. 

 When a counterparty files for bankruptcy and this would avoid or delay discharge of its            

obligation. 

 Where the Company initiates legal recourse of recovery in respect of a credit obligation of the 

counterpart. 

 Where the Company consents to a restructuring of the obligation, resulting in a diminished financial 

obligation, demonstrated by a material forgiveness of debt or postponement of scheduled 

payments. 

 Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated 

future cash flows of a group of financial assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with 

specific individual financial assets. 
 

Offsetting of Financial Instruments 

The Company offsets the financial assets and liabilities and presents the net amount in the Statement 

of Financial Position when and only when, it has a legal right to set off the amounts and intends either 

to settle them on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 

3.8 Inventories 

Inventories are carried at the lower of net realizable value or cost. Cost comprises of all costs of 

purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 

location and condition. Cost is measured using first in first out method. Net realizable value is the 

estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and 

the necessary estimated expenses. 

 

3.9 Trade and Other Receivables: 

Trade receivables comprise of amounts owed to Company by the customers. Trade receivables do not 

carry any interest and are measured at the carrying amount at which the item is initially recognized 

less any impairment losses, i.e., stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances. 

Such allowances are affected by writing downs based on the estimated irrecoverable amount. 
 

Impairment of Trade Receivables 

For allowances, assets with a potential need for a write-down are grouped together on the basis of 

similar credit risk characteristics, tested collectively for impairment, and written down, if necessary. 

Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing of the receivable balances, taking previous 

cases of default into consideration and historical experiences. Since these receivables are considered 

good hence no impairment is reflected in books. 

 

3.10 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents have an original maturity of less than three months. This enables the 

Company to meet its short-term liquidity requirements. 
 

The majority of Company�s cash and cash equivalents comprise of call and current deposits that are 

readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of change in value. 

These also include cash-in-hand and cheque. The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents 

approximates their fair value. 
 

Risk of holding cash and bank balance is the time value of money and the inflationary devaluation 

which is not fully offset by interest earned by those bank deposits. 
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3.11 Share Capital 

Share Capital here represents the par value of equity shares issued. The Company has classified 

Financial Instruments as equity when there is no contractual obligation to transfer cash, other financial 

assets or issue available number of own equity instruments. Incremental costs directly attributable to 

the issue of new shares have not been deducted from equity. 

 

3.12 Reserves 

The reserve includes retained earnings, deferred tax reserve and corporate social responsibility 

reserve. 
 

Retained Earnings 

Retained earnings include the accumulated profit and loss and amount retained by Company after 

distribution of dividends. 
 

Corporate Social Responsibility 

The Company has the policy of allocating 1% of annual profit as per Section 54 of Industrial Enterprises 

Act 2076. The Company has allocated NPR.  1,874,973 as CSR during this fiscal year. 
 

Deferred Tax Reserve 

Deferred tax Reserve contains recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 

assets and liabilities. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible and 

taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying 

amount in the financial statements. The deferred tax reserve has been transferred to the Retained 

earnings during the year. 

 

3.13 Employee Benefits 
 

i) Short Term Obligation 

Liabilities for wages and salaries and other allowances, including non-monetary benefits that are 

expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees 

render the related service are recognized in respect of employee�s services up to the end of the 

reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 

The liabilities have been categorized under �Current Liabilities� in the statement of financial position. 
 

ii) Post- Employment benefits 
 

Defined Contribution Plan: 

The Company pays provident contributions in the form of Provident Funds to publicly administered 

provident funds as per the local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligation once 

contributions have been paid. The Contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and 

the contribution are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due.  
 

Defined Benefit Plan: 

Staff Retirement expenses are measured at their fair value which is carried at present value of defined 

benefit obligations. NAS 19- Employee Benefits requires defined benefit plan to be calculated using 

the projected unit credit method with actuarial obligations being carried out at each Statement of 

Financial Position. However, analysing the cost involved in actuarial valuation, the Company has not 

computed the cost of defined benefits obligation by third party actuary. The Company has made 

provision for the same as per Employee Byelaws pertaining to legal regulation. 
 

Likewise, the Company has contributed @ 8.33% of the basic salary as per the provisions of Labour 

Act, 2074 for the staffs appointed after the commencement of the act and gratuity as per the existing 

bylaws has been provided to the existing employees as at the date of new Labour Act, 2074. 
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iii)  Long Term Employee Benefits 

Employees have a statutory entitlement to certain months� paid leave or the cash equivalent as per 

the Employee Byelaws pertaining to legal regulation. These benefits are included in the long-term 

employee benefits and are presented under Net Defined Benefit Obligations by the Company. 

 

3.14 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
 

Provisions 

The Company recognizes provisions when there is a binding present obligation. This may be either 

legal because it derives from a contract, legislation or other operation of law or constructive because 

the Company created valid expectations on the part of third parties by accepting certain 

responsibilities. To record such an obligation, it must be probable that an outflow of resources will be 

required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate has been made for the amount of the obligation. 

The amount recognized as a provision and the indicated time range of outflow of economic benefits 

are the best estimate (most probable outcome) of the expenditure required to settle present 

obligation at the reporting date taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 

obligation, non-current provisions are scouted if the impact is material. 
 

Contingent Liabilities 

The Company recognizes contingent liabilities only when there is possible obligation arising from the 

past events due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future not wholly within 

the control of the Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future 

outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are 

assessed on an on-going basis and only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are 

provided for. 
 

Contingent Assets 

The Company discloses contingent assets where it is possible that future economic benefits will flow 

to the Company in the financial statements. 

 

3.15 Long term borrowing 

Borrowing that is expected to be settled after 12 months period is recognized in long term borrowing. 

It includes Term loan and vehicle loan received from various banks as long-term borrowing as per 

terms of payment mentioned in loan document. The current portion of such long-term loans is 

segregated. Long term loan also includes vehicle loan utilized. The discount rate for the purpose of 

fair value measurement closely approximates the effective interest rate. Hence, fair value of long-

term borrowing is it carrying amount. The current maturity portion of term loan for comparative 

period has been classified as short term for fair presentation and comparison in 16/07/2025�s 

financial.  

 

3.16 Short term Borrowing 

Borrowings that are expected to be settled before 12 months period is recognized in short-term 

borrowing. The Current has recognized 16/07/2025's maturity portion of long-term loan as short-term 

loan.  

 

3.17 Trade and Other Payables 

The Company recognizes trade payable for amount payable by the Company for goods purchased or 

services availed as a part of business operation.  Such amounts are classified as Trade Payables and 

are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost. The fair value of 

such trade and other payable is equivalent to their carrying amount. Hence, Trade and other payables 

are stated at their cost. 
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3.18 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is 

recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and 

the revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured.  
 

Revenue of the Company comprises of revenue from Sale of Cable Car Tickets, Sales from Food & 

Beverage and Merchandise Goods Outlets, Amusement Park Activities and Resort Room Revenue.  

Revenue is recognized in statement of profit or loss upon rendering of the service, provided pervasive 

evidence of an arrangement exists, the tariff/rates for such service is fixed or are determinable and 

collectability reasonably certain. The Company has opted Aegis software for billing of Food & Beverage, 

Merchandise Goods, Amusement Revenue and Resort Revenue. However, Umbrella Solutions 

software is used for Billing Cable Car Tickets.  
 

Other income includes rental income, insurance claim, interest income, rebate income and 

miscellaneous income. 

 

3.19 Operating Expenses 

The Company recognizes expenses when obligations are incurred and when the revenue generated 

from those expenses is recognized. An expense is the cost of operation that a Company incurs to 

generate revenue.  
 

Expenses comprise of cost of material consumed, administrative expenses, personnel expenses, 

finance charges, advertisement expenses, depreciation and amortization expenses. 

 

3.20 Lease  

The Company determines whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, based on the 

substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the 

arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or whether the arrangement conveys a right 

to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company 

considers whether:  

 The contract involves the use of an identified asset. This may be specified explicitly or implicitly and 

should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct 

asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified. 

 The Company has right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset 

throughout the period of use; and  

 The Company has right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has the 

decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is 

used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is 

predetermined, the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset if either.  

 The Company has the right to operate the asset; or 

 The Company designed the assets in a way that predetermined how and for what purpose it will 

be used. 
 

Leases are classified as finance leases by the Company whenever the terms of the lease transfer 

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as 

operating leases. The Company does not have any finance leases during the year. 

The Company has applied NFRS 16 Leases for all the right to use identifiable assets effective from 1st 

Shrawan 2078. The Company recognizes the right of use (ROU) assets and a lease liability in 

accordance with Para 22 of NFRS 16. The right to use assets is the present value of the total lease 

payments up to the end of contract date from the start of contract inclusive of any increments on the 

payment of the rent.  The present value has been derived using the discount rate equal to the 
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Company�s average incremental borrowing rate of 10%. The Company has applied cost model after 

initial recognition on commencement date and subsequent measurement. The Company has 

measured the right-of-use asset at cost: by providing depreciation over the lease term on a straight-

line basis: 

a. Less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment and  

b. Adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities if any. 

 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at 

the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot 

be readily determined, the Company�s average incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is 

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.  

 

The Company has presented right of use assets and the corresponding lease liability under Note 4.1B 

to the Financial Statements.  

 

3.21 Income Taxes 

Income tax expenses represent the sum of the income tax currently payable and deferred tax. 
 

Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable 

temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount 

in the financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of 

goodwill, an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither 

accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction. 
 

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that is probable that taxable profit will be 

available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax 

credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. 
 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part 

of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. The Company has recognized deferred tax 

asset/liabilities on the items through which such temporary difference has arisen. 
 

Current Tax 

Current tax is the estimated tax payable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment 

to the tax payable or receivable in respect of 7/16/2025. The amount of current tax payable is the best 

estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to income 

taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted as at the reporting date. Accordingly, provision for 

taxation is based on the profit for the year adjusted for taxation purposes in accordance with the 

provisions of the Income Tax Act. Current tax assets and liabilities can be set off to an extent 

enforceable and allowed as per law. 

 

3.22 Segment Reporting 

Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating 

segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn 

revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of 

the Company's other components. 

The Company is required to report on its Operating Segments in a manner consistent with the internal 

reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) as defined by NFRS 8, �Operating 
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Segment�. The assets information and receivable balances reported is limited to the available 

information of the Company.  

 

The identifiable assets and liabilities have been regrouped and reclassified. 
 

Segment Reporting for Profit or Loss 

(Amount In NPR) 

Particulars 

Segment 1 Segment 2 Segment 3 

Total 
Cable Car, Food 

& Beverage and 

Branded shop 

Resort 
Amusement 

Park 

2081/82 2081/82 2081/82 2081/82 

Revenue          

Total Revenue  630,488,847 242,008,750 29,918,970 902,416,567 

Total Revenue from External 

customers  
630,488,847 242,008,750 29,918,970 902,416,567 

Revenue per consolidated 

statement of Comprehensive 

Income  

630,488,847 242,008,750 29,918,970 902,416,567 

 Accumulated Depreciation & 

Amortization  
729,997,841 430,661,254 3,749,993 1,164,409,088 

Segment profit  261,630,874 100,425,188 12,415,329 374,471,391 

 Finance expense     (164,483,932) 

 Finance income     1,030,343 

 Rental Income     2,791,430 

 Other income     27,116,397 

 Other unallocated expenses     (527,945,177) 

Profit before tax and 

discontinued operations  
   240,925,628 

 

Segment Reporting for Financial Position 

(Amount In NPR) 

Particulars 

Segment 1 Segment 2 Segment 3 Total 

Cable Car Resort Amusement Park  

2081/82 2081/82 2081/82 2081/82 

Reportable segment assets 

(Fixed assets) 
    

Property, Plant & Equipment 

(Net) 
1,689,912,424 1,225,182,102 28,166,759 2,943,261,284 

Trade and Other Receivable    32,305,453 

Investment in subsidiary and 

associates 
   180,500,000 

Other investments    145,200,000 

Other unallocated assets    439,286,726 

Total assets    3,740,553,464 

Reportable segment liabilities     

Loans and Borrowings 

(excluding leases and short 

term) 

   1,406,522,237 
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Particulars 

Segment 1 Segment 2 Segment 3 Total 

Cable Car Resort Amusement Park  

2081/82 2081/82 2081/82 2081/82 

Short term borrowings    312,805,629 

Derivative Financial liabilities    - 

Deferred tax liabilities    200,872,817 

Employee benefits    24,158,998 

Other unallocated and central 

liabilities 
   168,812,683 

Total liabilities    2,113,172,363 
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4. Notes to Account 

 

4.1  Property Plant and Equipment 

The Company has applied the Cost Model of accounting for Property, Plant and Equipment and those 

policies have been consistently applied for all its Property, Plant and Equipment to all the periods 

presented. All categories of Property, Plant and Equipment are initially recorded at cost. Property, 

Plant and Equipment are subsequently measured at historical cost, less depreciation and impairment 

losses (if any). Historical cost includes cost of acquisition and expenditure that is directly attributable 

to its acquisition. 
 

Standalone 

Property Plant and 

Equipment 

Balance as on 

15/07/2024 

Additions 

during the 

year 

Disposals 

during the 

year 

Balance as on 

16/07/2025 

At Cost     

Land 357,057,388 - - 357,057,388 

Building 1,478,987,317 1,749,186 - 1,480,736,503 

Leasehold Properties 199,470 - - 199,470 

Computer and Accessories 57,503,210 1,150,338  58,653,548 

Vehicles 33,153,819 8,490,442 - 41,644,261 

Furniture & Fixture 318,596,452 4,640,020 - 323,236,473 

Machinery 804,974,705 26,169,340 - 831,144,045 

Kitchen Equipment 42,962,623 1,246,383 - 44,209,006 

Equipment & Others 81,618,097 3,669,067 - 85,287,164 

Parking and Access Road 420,874,659 - - 420,874,659 

Capital WIP - 95,189,925 - 95,189,925 

Resort Land and Development 422,643,775 - - 422,643,775 

Amusement Park 31,739,760 176,991 - 31,916,751 

Total 4,050,311,274 142,481,693 - 4,192,792,967 

Depreciation     

Land - - - - 

Building 303,775,796 43,524,634 - 347,300,430 

Leasehold Properties 199,470 - - 199,470 

Computer and Accessories 29,898,102 3,798,188 - 33,696,291 

Vehicles 13,655,141 3,298,053 - 16,953,193 

Furniture & Fixture 114,316,555 13,632,082 - 127,948,637 

Machinery 348,922,852 21,248,314 - 370,171,166 

Kitchen Equipment 19,246,010 3,335,206 - 22,581,217 

Equipment & Others 39,238,479 5,889,566 - 45,128,045 

Parking and Access Road 113,158,395 11,396,899 - 124,555,294 

Capital WIP - - - - 

Resort Land and Development 51,980,517 13,567,199 - 65,547,716 

Amusement Park 2,673,485 1,076,508 - 3,749,993 

Total 1,037,064,804 120,766,648 - 1,157,831,452 

Net Book Value     

Land 357,057,388 - - 357,057,388 

Building 1,175,211,522 1,749,186 (43,524,634) 1,133,436,074 

Leasehold Properties - - - - 
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Property Plant and 

Equipment 

Balance as on 

15/07/2024 

Additions 

during the 

year 

Disposals 

during the 

year 

Balance as on 

16/07/2025 

Computer and Accessories 27,605,108 1,150,338 (3,798,188) 24,957,259 

Vehicles 19,498,678 8,490,442 (3,298,053) 24,691,068 

Furniture & Fixture 204,279,897 4,640,020 (13,632,082) 195,287,835 

Machinery 456,051,852 26,169,340 (21,248,314) 460,972,878 

Kitchen Equipment 23,716,613 1,246,383 (3,335,206) 21,627,790 

Equipment & Others 42,379,617 3,669,067 (5,889,566) 40,159,118 

Parking and Access Road 307,716,264 - (11,396,899) 296,319,365 

Capital WIP - 95,189,925 - 95,189,925 

Resort Land and Development 370,663,257 - (13,567,199) 357,096,058 

Amusement Park 29,066,275 176,991 (1,076,508) 28,166,758 

Net Book value 3,013,246,470 142,481,693 (120,766,648) 3,034,961,515 

 

Group 

Property Plant and 

Equipment 

Balance as on 

15/07/2024 

Additions 

during the 

year 

Disposals 

during the 

year 

Balance as on 

16/07/2025 

At Cost     

Land 532,957,388 - - 532,957,388 

Building 1,478,987,317 1,749,186 - 1,480,736,503 

Leasehold Properties 199,470 - - 199,470 

Computer and Accessories 57,503,210 1,150,338 - 58,653,548 

Vehicles 33,153,819 8,490,442 - 41,644,261 

Furniture & Fixture 318,596,452 4,640,020 - 323,236,473 

Machinery 804,974,705 26,169,340 - 831,144,045 

Kitchen Equipment 42,962,623 1,246,383 - 44,209,006 

Equipment & Others 81,618,097 3,669,067 - 85,287,164 

Parking and Access Road 420,874,659 - - 420,874,659 

Capital WIP - 95,189,925 - 95,189,925 

Resort Land and Development 422,643,775 - - 422,643,775 

Amusement Park 31,739,760 176,991 - 31,916,751 

Total 4,226,211,274 142,481,693 - 4,368,692,967 

Depreciation     

Land - - - - 

Building 303,775,796 43,524,634 - 347,300,430 

Leasehold Properties 199,470 - - 199,470 

Computer and Accessories 29,898,102 3,798,188 - 33,696,291 

Vehicles 13,655,141 3,298,053 - 16,953,193 

Furniture & Fixture 114,316,555 13,632,082 - 127,948,637 

Machinery 348,922,852 21,248,314 - 370,171,166 

Kitchen Equipment 19,246,010 3,335,206 - 22,581,217 

Equipment & Others 39,238,479 5,889,566 - 45,128,045 

Parking and Access Road 113,158,395 11,396,899 - 124,555,294 

Capital WIP - - - - 
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Property Plant and 

Equipment 

Balance as on 

15/07/2024 

Additions 

during the 

year 

Disposals 

during the 

year 

Balance as on 

16/07/2025 

Resort Land and Development 51,980,517 13,567,199 - 65,547,716 

Amusement Park 2,673,485 1,076,508 - 3,749,993 

Total 1,037,064,804 120,766,648 - 1,157,831,452 

Net Book Value     

Land 532,957,388 - - 532,957,388 

Building 1,175,211,522 1,749,186 (43,524,634) 1,133,436,074 

Leasehold Properties - - - - 

Computer and Accessories 27,605,108 1,150,338 (3,798,188) 24,957,259 

Vehicles 19,498,678 8,490,442 (3,298,053) 24,691,068 

Furniture & Fixture 204,279,897 4,640,020 (13,632,082) 195,287,835 

Machinery 456,051,852 26,169,340 (21,248,314) 460,972,878 

Kitchen Equipment 23,716,613 1,246,383 (3,335,206) 21,627,790 

Equipment & Others 42,379,617 3,669,067 (5,889,566) 40,159,118 

Parking and Access Road 307,716,264 - (11,396,899) 296,319,365 

Capital WIP - 95,189,925 - 95,189,925 

Resort Land and Development 370,663,257 - (13,567,199) 357,096,058 

Amusement Park 29,066,275 176,991 (1,076,508) 28,166,758 

Net Book value 3,189,146,470 142,481,693 (120,766,648) 3,210,861,515 

 

4.1  Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets are initially recognized at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at cost less 

accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses if any. An intangible asset is recognized 

if it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow 

to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. 

             (Amount In NPR) 

  Group Standalone 

Particular 7/16/2025 7/15/2024 7/16/2025 7/15/2024 

Software 3,489,698 4,479,171 3,489,698 4,479,171 

 

4.1 (B) Right of Use Assets and Lease Liability 

The right to use of assets and lease liability is the present value of the total lease payments up to the 

contract date from the start of the Contract. The Company provides depreciation over the lease term 

on straight-line basis and the lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 

average effective interest method. 

            (Amount In NPR) 

Particulars 
Group Stand Alone 

7/16/2025 7/15/2024 7/16/2025 7/15/2024 

Right-of-use assets     

Opening Balance 16th July 2024 25,768,400 26,688,700 41,205,509 43,033,874 

Recognized during the year - - - - 

Depreciation on ROU Assets during 

the year 
920,300 920,300 1,828,365 1,828,365 

Closing Balance as on 16th July, 

2025 
24,848,100 25,768,400 39,377,144 41,205,509 
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Particulars 
Group Stand Alone 

7/16/2025 7/15/2024 7/16/2025 7/15/2024 

Lease Liability     

Opening Balance 16th July 2024 33,359,099 32,126,453 51,077,295 50,006,632 

Recognized during the year - - - - 

Unwinding of Lease Liability:     

Interest expense on Lease liability 3,335,910 3,084,223 5,107,729 5,000,663 

(Increase)/Decrease in Lease 

Liability 
(1,175,910) (1,232,645) (997,729) (1,070,663) 

Closing Balance as on 16th July, 

2025 
34,535,008 33,359,099 52,075,024 51,077,295 

  

4.2 (A) Investment in Subsidiary  

The Company has investment in following subsidiaries. Details of which are:  

(Amount In NPR) 

Investment 
Group Standalone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

A. Investment in Subsidiary at FVTPL     

Multipokhara Development Pvt. Ltd. - - 180,000,000 180,000,000 

Chandragiri Hills Paragliding - - 500,000 500,000 

Total - - 180,500,000 180,500,000 

 

4.2 (B) Other Investments 

Other investment comprises of investment in a Company for a new project. Details of which are: 

   (Amount In NPR) 

Other Investment 
Group Standalone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Equity Investment at FVTPL     

Lumbini Cable Car Ltd. 115,200,000 115,200,000 115,200,000 115,200,000 

Maulakali Cable Car Ltd. 30,000,000 20,000,000 30,000,000 20,000,000 

Total 145,200,000 135,200,000 145,200,000 135,200,000 

 

4.3  Deferred Tax Assets 

Deferred Tax Assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of timing difference 

between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and carry forward 

of operating loss. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted or substantively 

enacted tax rates at the reporting date. Deferred Tax Assets are recognized only to the extent there is 

reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in future. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each 

balance sheet date and appropriately adjusted to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually 

certain to be realized. 

(Amount In NPR) 

   Deferred Tax (Asset) / 

Liability 

Group Standalone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Deferred Tax Asset     

Balance at the beginning of 

the Year 
67,631,413 127,088,503 71,147,683 130,642,219 
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   Deferred Tax (Asset) / 

Liability 

Group Standalone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Provision/ Release of 

timing difference made 

during the Year 

(40,070,122) (59,457,090) (43,772,741) (59,494,536) 

Balance as at the end of 

the Year 
27,561,291 67,631,413 27,374,941 71,147,683 

Deferred Tax Liability     

Balance at the beginning of 

the Year 
215,688,851 201,287,839 218,592,213 204,556,873 

Provision/ Release of 

timing difference made 

during the Year 

(9,653,098) 14,401,013 9,655,545 14,035,340 

Balance as at the end of 

the Year 
225,341,950 215,688,851 228,247,758 218,592,213 

Net Deferred Tax (Asset)/ 

Liability 
197,780,659 148,057,438 200,872,817 147,444,531 

Deferred Tax Liability 

relates to the following 
    

Temporary difference from 

Property, Plant & 

Equipment 

1,101,861,648 1,051,755,556 1,101,861,648 1,051,755,556 

Temporary difference from 

Employee Benefits 
(24,158,998) (19,702,473) (24,158,998) (19,702,473) 

Temporary difference on 

Lease Rentals 
(9,686,908) (6,670,398) (12,697,881) (9,871,786) 

Brought forward Tax Loss (79,112,449) (285,095,495) (60,640,685) (284,958,644) 

Temporary Difference 988,903,293 740,287,189 1,004,364,084 737,222,653 

Tax @ 20% 197,780,659 148,057,438 200,872,817 147,444,531 

Deferred Tax (Income) / 

Expense recognized during 

the year 

49,723,221 73,858,102 53,428,286 73,529,876 

 

4.4 Non-Current Deposits 

These include advances and deposits paid as security.  

   (Amount In NPR) 

Non- current deposits 
Group Standalone 

7/16/2025 7/15/2024 7/16/2025 7/15/2024 

Deposit - Gas Cylinder 427,000 427,000 427,000 427,000 

Deposit- Water 500 500 500 500 

Security Deposit-Water Jar Sunshine 22,124 22,124 22,124 22,124 

Security Deposit-NOC 60,000 - 60,000 - 

Security Deposit - Internet 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 

Deposit - Shikhar Insurance 48,156 40,901 48,156 40,901 

Security Deposit - Oxygen 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 

Security Deposit - Nescafe 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 

Security Deposit - Telephone 4,250 4,250 4,250 4,250 

Total 608,030 540,775 608,030 540,775 
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4.5 Inventory 

Inventory primarily comprise of consumable items, raw materials of restaurants, packaged food and 

beverages, maintenance spare parts, etc.  

   (Amount In NPR) 

Inventory 
Group Standalone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Consumable Stock - Kitchen Utensils 5,583,888 4,829,392 5,583,888 4,829,392 

Inventory: Food And Beverage 13,827,104 12,088,924 13,827,104 12,088,924 

Inventory: General Store 11,537,437 6,543,281 11,537,437 6,543,281 

Inventory - Branded Shop 3,785,653 2,992,208 3,785,653 2,992,208 

Inventory- Maintenance 12,726,255 12,554,974 12,726,255 12,554,974 

Inventory - House Keeping Supplies 1,645,477 1,680,127 1,645,477 1,680,127 

Total 49,105,815 40,688,907 49,105,815 40,688,907 

              

4.6 Current Tax Assets 

Current tax is based on the taxable profit for the year. The amount of current tax assets/liability has 

been booked by netting off advance income tax with the provision for taxation made.  

   (Amount In NPR) 

Current Tax Assets/Liabilities 
Group Standalone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Advance Tax 6,701,648 9,277,531 5,921,648 8,692,531 

Net Current Tax Assets/Liabilities) 6,701,648 9,277,531 5,921,648 8,692,531 

 

4.7 Other Current Assets 

Other non-financial assets include prepaid expenses and advance paid against salary. The historical 

costs of such assets less any provision for impairment is their carrying amount. 

   (Amount In NPR) 

Other Current Assets 
Group Standalone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Prepaid Expenses 9,829,576 9,277,787 9,829,576 9,277,787 

Advance 99,062,972 71,332,885 153,824,425 112,980,403 

Total 108,892,549 80,610,673 163,654,001 122,258,190 

Sub - Schedule-1     

Advance     

Staff Advance 5,258,748 6,615,052 5,258,748 6,615,052 

Mobilization Advance     

Advance for WIP 48,662,618 48,662,618 48,662,618 48,662,618 

Other Advances 4,224,524 60,000 58,985,977 41,707,517 

Party Advance 40,917,082 15,995,216 40,917,082 15,995,216 

Total 99,062,972 71,332,885 153,824,425 112,980,403 
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4.8 Receivables and Current Deposit 

Receivables and Current Deposits include sundry debtors, rent receivable and Bank Guarantee and 

margin.     

(Amount In NPR) 

Receivable and current deposits 
Group Standalone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Trade Receivable 27,755,144 35,014,494 27,333,595 34,594,445 

Other Receivable 1,369,108 - 1,369,108 - 

Bank Guarantee and margin 3,602,750 954,000 3,602,750 954,000 

Total 32,727,002 35,968,493 32,305,453 35,548,444 

 

4.9 Cash and Cash Equivalent 

This includes the cash on hand, cash on vault, balance with other banks and financial institutions which 

are used by the Company for management of its short-term commitment. The carrying amount of 

cash and cash equivalents approximates their fair value. 

   (Amount In NPR) 

Cash and cash equivalent 
Group Standalone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Cash Balance 5,003,884 3,518,393 4,907,184 3,421,003 

Cheque in Hand 694,600 1,046,149 694,600 1,046,149 

Bank Balance     

Global Ime Bank Limited 56,702,011 65,906,563 56,702,011 65,906,563 

Citizens International Bank Limited 1,148,455 1,148,455 1,148,455 1,148,455 

Prabhu Bank Limited 12,887,981 46,255,690 12,887,981 46,255,690 

Prime Bank Limited 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 

Machhapuchhre Bank Limited 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 

Siddhartha Bank Limited 43,528 5,043,528 43,528 5,043,528 

Mega Bank Limited 72,633 72,633 72,633 72,633 

Sanima Bank Limited 1,379 1,379 1,379 1,379 

Sunrise Bank Limited 180,871 180,871 180,871 180,871 

Himalayan Bank Limited 1,793,773 2,172,558 1,793,773 2,172,558 

Nepal Investment Bank Limited 6,980,246 6,016,499 6,980,246 6,016,499 

Total for Bank Balance 79,828,377 126,815,676 79,828,377 126,815,676 

Total 85,526,860 131,380,218 85,430,160 131,282,828 
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4.10 (A)  Share Capital 

Financial Instruments issued by the Company are classified as equity when there is no contractual 

obligation to transfer cash, other financial assets or issue available number of own equity instruments. 

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction 

net of taxes from the proceeds. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized in equity in the period in 

which they are declared.  

(Amount In NPR) 

Share Capital 7/16/2025 7/15/2024 

No of 

Shares 

Amount No of 

Shares 

Amount 

A. Equity Shares 
    

Authorized 
    

Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each 20,000,000 2,000,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000,000 

Issued     

Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each 15,340,910 1,534,091,000 15,340,910 1,534,091,000 

Subscribed and Fully Paid     

Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each 15,340,910 1,534,091,000 15,340,910 1,534,091,000 

Total 15,340,910 1,534,091,000 15,340,910 1,534,091,000 

 

4.10 (B)  Reserve 

The reserve includes the reserve brought forward, this year profit, deferred tax reserve and corporate 

social responsibility reserve as required by the regulatory body. 

      (Amount In NPR) 

Reserves 

Group Standalone 

7/16/2025 15/07/2024 7/16/2025 15/07/2024 

Amount Amount Amount Amount 

Retained Earning (4,291,988) (181,119,920) 88,126,388 (97,380,218) 

Corporate Social Responsibility 

Reserve 
5,163,712 3,288,738 5,163,712 3,288,738 

Total 871,724 (177,831,181) 93,290,100 (94,091,480) 

 

4.11 Long Term Borrowings 

Long Term Borrowings are the borrowings from bank which needs to be settled after 12 months period. 

The company has recognized Term loan received from various banks as long-term borrowing as per 

terms of payment mentioned in loan document. 

   (Amount In NPR) 

Long Term Borrowings 
Group Standalone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Term loan I 431,146,885 557,866,885 431,146,885 557,866,885 

Term loan II 906,284,000 994,284,000 906,284,000 994,284,000 

Term loan III 351,903,064 381,861,564 351,903,064 381,861,564 

Vehicle Loan 8,270,917 4,431,270 8,270,917 4,431,270 

Less: Current Maturity of term 

loan 
(291,082,629) (245,722,789) (291,082,629) (245,722,789) 

Prabhu Bank Loan- Secured 

Loan 
1,406,522,237 1,692,720,930 1,406,522,237 1,692,720,930 
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4.12 Employee Benefit 

For defined benefit plans, although the provision for gratuity and leave encashment made as such 

does not concur with the prevailing accounting standards i.e. NAS 19 - Employee Benefits, prescribed 

recognition criteria is not practically possible. As such, the ad-hoc amount has been provisioned for in 

the financial statements. Such obligations of the Company need to be measured on an actuarial basis 

using the Projected Unit Credit Method. As per the Conceptual Framework issued by Accounting 

Standards Board, reporting financial information imposes cost and it is important that those costs are 

justified by the benefits of reporting that information. Viewing the cost constraints involved in 

actuarial valuation, the Company has not computed the cost of defined benefits obligation by third 

party actuary. The Company�s Statement of Profit and Loss Account is charged with current service 

cost for the year. 

   (Amount In NPR) 

Particulars Group Standalone 

Employee Benefits 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Defined Benefit Plan-Liabilities     

Opening Liability (excluding pre-

payments) 
10,158,105 7,557,096 10,158,105 7,557,096 

Interest costs - - - - 

Current Service Cost 3,986,210 3,765,413 3,986,210 3,765,413 

Less: Gratuity Paid during the Year 1,415,654 1,164,403 1,415,654 1,164,403 

Actuarial Gain or Loss - - - - 

Closing Liabilities for Gratuity 12,728,661 10,158,105 12,728,661 10,158,105 

Leave Encashment     

Opening Liability (Excluding 

Prepayments) 
9,544,368 7,531,495 9,544,368 7,531,495 

Current Service Cost 3,896,607 3,467,472 3,896,607 3,467,472 

Less: Leave Encashment Paid 

During the year 
11,430,337 9,544,368 2,010,639 1,454,599 

Closing Liabilities for Leave 

Encashment 
11,430,337 9,544,368 11,430,337 9,544,368 

Total Liabilities 24,158,998 19,702,473 24,158,998 19,702,473 

 

4.13 Short term Borrowings 

Short term loan comprises of working capital loan and the Fixed Term Loan payable within 12 months. 

The company has borrowed these short-term sources of funds to meet the working capital 

requirement of the company. 

   (Amount In NPR) 

Short Term Borrowings 
Group Standalone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Bridge Gap Loan 21,723,000 - 21,723,000 - 

Add: Current maturity of term loan 291,082,629 245,722,789 291,082,629 245,722,789 

Total 312,805,629 245,722,789 312,805,629 245,722,789 
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4.14 Short-term Employee Benefits 

In accordance with NAS 19 �Employee Benefits�, The Company classifies the following items as Short-

term Employee Benefits: 

 (Amount In NPR) 

Employee Benefit 
Group Standalone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Salary Payable  14,100,534   14,250,038   14,100,534   14,250,038  

Provision for Staff Bonus  27,303,914   30,389,392   27,303,914   30,389,392  

CIT Payable/ Provident Fund Payable  1,167,621   1,015,601   1,167,621   1,015,601  

Total  42,572,069   45,655,032   42,572,069   45,655,032  

   

4.15 Trade and other Payable 

The Company recognizes trade payable for amount payable by the Company for goods purchased or 

services availed as a part of business operation. Other payable includes payable to various vendors for 

the goods and services availed. Retention money is held to enable the completion of various services 

on time.  

   (Amount In NPR) 

Trade and other payable 
Group Standalone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Trade Payable  22,485,399   20,809,281   22,485,399   20,809,281  

Other Payable  23,496,321   12,875,648   23,208,730   12,764,658  

Local Charges  7,233,458   16,598,105   7,233,458   16,598,105  

2% Luxury Tax  494,456   477,813   494,456   477,813  

Retention money  1,481,137   1,463,931   1,481,137   1,463,931  

Service Charge  2,658,013   2,658,013   2,658,013   2,658,013  

Director Payable  40,129,013   40,129,013   -     -    

VAT Payable  7,438,609   8,254,963   7,438,609   8,254,963  

TDS on Contract and Service  3,126,209   1,593,390   3,084,509   1,570,590  

Reverse VAT Payable  6,081,278   6,722,901   6,081,278   6,722,901  

Total  114,623,893   111,583,059   74,165,590   71,320,256  

 

4.16 Revenue from Operations 

The Company�s revenue included revenue from ticket sales of cable car, food and beverages sold at 

restaurants, sales of merchandise goods and revenue from resort.  

   (Amount In NPR) 

Operation Income 
Group Stand Alone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Revenue from Ticket 495,712,288 578,406,001 495,712,288 578,406,001 

Food & Beverage 98,167,225 107,259,849 98,167,225 107,259,849 

Merchandise Goods 10,479,228 9,174,259 10,479,228 9,174,259 

Other Operating Revenue 26,130,107 27,147,963 26,130,107 27,147,963 

Resort Revenue 242,008,750 249,378,533 242,008,750 249,378,533 

Amusement Park 29,918,970 28,749,374 29,918,970 28,749,374 

Total Revenue from Operation 902,416,567 1,000,115,981 902,416,567 1,000,115,981 

Sub-Schedule I     

Resort Revenue     

Room Revenue 137,000,850 148,906,978 137,000,850 148,906,978 

Food & Beverage 85,115,748 85,191,326 85,115,748 85,191,326 
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Operation Income 
Group Stand Alone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Banquet Revenue 13,447,702 12,179,840.51 13,447,702 12,179,840.51 

SPA Revenue 5,705,835 1,360,244.69 5,705,835 1,360,244.69 

Other Revenue 738,616 1,740,144 738,616 1,740,144 

Sub Total Resort Revenue 242,008,750 249,378,533 242,008,750 249,378,533 

  

4.17  Operation Expenses 

Operation expenses (cost of goods sold) of the Company include direct cost attributable to the 

operational income. It includes purchase cost of foods and beverages, merchandise goods, 

housekeeping expenses and other directly attributable expenses, the details of which is shown below: 

 

   (Amount In NPR) 

Cost of Material Consumed 
Group Stand Alone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

(a) Food & Beverage     

Opening Stock 16,918,316 16,304,196 16,918,316 16,304,196 

Direct Cost 99,985,673 100,358,819 99,985,673 100,358,819 
 116,903,989 116,663,015 116,903,989 116,663,015 

Less: Closing Stock 19,410,992 16,918,316 19,410,992 16,918,316 

Cost of Food & Beverages 97,492,997 99,744,699 97,492,997 99,744,699 

(b) Merchandise goods & 

Temple Goods 
    

Opening Stock 2,992,208 2,264,477 2,992,208 2,264,477 

Direct Cost 14,072,240 13,503,958 14,072,240 13,503,958 
 17,064,449 15,768,435 17,064,449 15,768,435 

Less: Closing Stock 3,785,653 2,992,208 3,785,653 2,992,208 

Cost of Merchandise Goods & 

Temple Goods 
13,278,796 12,776,227 13,278,796 12,776,227 

(c) Other Direct Expenses     

Revenue Sharing Expenses 8,798,973 4,622,551 8,798,973 4,622,551 

Housekeeping & Guest Supplies 5,113,728 6,111,847 5,113,728 6,111,847 

Cleaning Expenses 6,132,817 8,147,192 6,132,817 8,147,192 

Commission 6,093,768 - 6,093,768 - 

Discount Allowed 245,964 3,742,682 245,964 3,742,682 

Laundry And Dry Cleaning 5,435,581 5,318,397 5,435,581 5,318,397 

Power & Fuel 32,271,158 33,097,219 32,271,158 33,097,219 

Upkeep & Service Cost 1,017,460 1,682,911 1,017,460 1,682,911 

Repair & Maintenance 1,844,094 3,570,473 1,844,094 3,570,473 

Annual Maintenance Charge 2,901,030 2,425,510 2,901,030 2,425,510 

Total Other direct expenses 69,854,574 68,718,783 69,854,574 68,718,783 

Grand Total 180,626,367 181,239,708 180,626,367 181,239,708 
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4.18 Other Income 

Other Income comprises of rental income, receipts from insurance claim, interest, rebate and other    

incomes generated other than from core business activities. 

   (Amount In NPR) 

Other Income 
Group Stand Alone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Rental Income 2,791,430 2,522,351 2,791,430 2,522,351 

Insurance Claim 6,036,793 - 6,036,793 - 

Interest Income 1,030,343 3,114,649 1,030,343 3,114,649 

Rebate Income 557,523 576,616 557,523 576,616 

Foreign Exchange Gain 131,434 47,206 131,434 47,206 

Miscellaneous Income 20,390,647 30,975,925 20,390,647 30,975,925 

Total 30,938,169 37,236,746 30,938,169 37,236,746 

 

4.19  Administrative Expenses 

The heading includes all indirect expenses other than operation expenses. The Company recognizes 

Administrative Expenses as and when legal or constructive obligation in respect of such expenses 

arises to the Company.                                   

   (Amount In NPR) 

Administrative Expenses 
Group Stand Alone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

AGM Expenses 287,085 410,150 287,085 410,150 

Audit Expenses 110,000 60,000 110,000 60,000 

External Audit Fees 560,000 560,000 450,000 450,000 

Internal Audit Fees 450,000 450,000 450,000 450,000 

Board Meeting Allowances 560,000 755,000 560,000 755,000 

Board Meeting Expenses 39,694 27,284 39,694 27,284 

Communication And Postage 511,644 774,357 511,644 774,357 

Consultancy Fee 1,111,675 5,852,750 1,111,675 5,852,750 

CSR Expenses 400,000 520,000 400,000 520,000 

Custom Clearing Charges 15,004 273,570.77 15,004 273,571 

Donation 578,500 386,500 578,500 386,500 

Entertainment 282,570 210,563 282,570 192,743 

Fine & Penalty 291,949 4,099,177 291,949 4,099,177 

Gardening Expenses 347,987 842,974 347,987 842,974 

Insurance Expenses 11,312,734 9,505,280 11,312,734 9,505,280 

Internet Charges 1,737,259 1,204,188 1,737,259 1,204,188 

Loss on disposal - 259,437 - 259,437 

Medical Expenses 132,420 191,319 132,420 191,319 

Miscellaneous Expenses 219,749 512,954 219,749 512,954 

Office Expenses 1,691,183 1,602,640 1,171,953 734,175 

Pooja Expenses 317,152 308,417 317,152 308,417 

Interest Charges 14,387,335 20,290,585 - - 

Power & Fuel 1,295,250 4,238,061 1,272,190 4,169,891 

Printing And Stationery 4,438,975 4,424,648 4,438,975 4,424,648 

Rate & Taxes 245,830 600,000 245,830 600,000 

Registration and Renewal 685,529 1,369,360 685,529 1,359,990 

Rental Expenses 1,176,800 1,469,690 1,152,800 1,445,690 
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Administrative Expenses 
Group Stand Alone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Repair & Maintenance 6,813,732 7,035,038 6,813,732 7,035,038 

Share Issue/Rating Expenses 448,339 742,470 448,339 742,470 

Subscription & Membership 847,378 502,200 847,378 502,200 

Supervision / Monitoring Fees 17,800 215,587 17,800 215,587 

Transportation Charges 163,397 528,592 163,397 528,592 

Travelling Expenses 423,439 585,203 423,439 565,963 

Total 51,900,407 70,807,996 36,836,782 49,400,346 

  

4.20 Personnel Expenses 

Salary, allowances and other incentive expenses of all human resources employed by the Company 

for day-to-day running of business operations including outsourced staff has been classified as 

personnel expenses. Details of personnel expenses as follows: 

   (Amount In NPR) 

Personnel Expenses 
Group Stand Alone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

a. Inhouse Staff Expenses     

Salary 73,210,427 68,097,537 73,210,427 68,097,537 

Dashain Allowances 6,337,319 6,002,867 6,337,319 6,002,867 

Overtime Allowances 455,981 1,429,648 455,981 1,429,648 

Provident Fund Contribution 4,790,925 4,520,696 4,790,925 4,520,696 

Gratuity Expenses 3,986,210 3,765,413 3,986,210 3,765,413 

Training And Development 257,555 884,542 257,555 884,542 

Staff Cafeteria Expenses 10,103,139 9,314,839 10,103,139 9,314,839 

Staff Welfare Expenses 399,178 207,981 399,178 207,981 

Leave Encashment Expenses 3,896,607 3,467,472 3,896,607 3,467,472 

Staff Bonus Expenses 26,769,514 30,389,392 26,769,514 30,389,392 

Other Allowance 7,552,897 5,918,226 7,552,897 5,918,226 

Uniform Expenses 1,865,463 1,677,388 1,865,463 1,677,388 

Subtotal 139,625,213 135,676,001 139,625,213 135,676,001 

b. Outsourced Staff Expenses     

Labour Wages 4,890,219 5,027,595 4,890,219 5,027,595 

Gardening & Cleaning Expenses 3,232,948 3,094,760 3,232,948 3,094,760 

Outsourced Staff Payroll Expenses 30,296,459 26,621,679 30,296,459 26,621,679 

Subtotal 38,419,626 34,744,034 38,419,626 34,744,034 

Total 178,044,839 170,420,036 178,044,839 170,420,036 

 

4.21  Advertisement Expenses 

The advertisement expenses include expenses made by the Company for advertisement of Company 

through various mediums such as advertisement in online medias like TVs, radio, pop up, 

advertisement in banners, hoarding boards, photo shoot etc. Details as follows: 

   (Amount In NPR) 

Advertisement Expenses 
Group Stand Alone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Advertisement - Online and Media 3,650,276 1,869,068 3,650,276 1,869,068 
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Advertisement Expenses 
Group Stand Alone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Advertisement - Banners/ Hoarding 

Boards 
3,514,714 506,400 3,514,714 506,400 

Branding & Promotion Expenses 1,448,297 1,593,859 1,448,297 1,593,859 

Events and Programme 214,414 32,200 214,414 32,200 

Total 8,827,701 4,001,527 8,827,701 4,001,527 

 

4.22 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment other than freehold land i.e. the Company�s freehold 

building and machinery, vehicle and other assets is provided on �Straight Line Method� based on 

estimated useful life estimated by the management. Similarly, depreciation on ROU Assets is provided 

over the lease term on a straight-line basis. Details as follow: 

             (Amount In NPR) 

Depreciation and Amortization 

Expenses 

Group Stand Alone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Tangible Asset 120,766,648 116,418,273 120,766,648 116,418,273 

Intangible Asset 1,014,473 895,927 1,014,473 895,927 

Depreciation on ROU Assets 920,300 920,300 1,828,365 1,828,365 

Total 122,701,422 118,234,499 123,609,487 119,142,565 

 

4.23 Finance Expenses 

Finance expenses include interest, charges and fees paid to financials institution for availing long term 

as well as short term borrowings and Interest expense under NFRS 16 Leases. The Company has 

booked transaction charges for availing loan facility such as loan management fee, agency fee as 

expenses for the current period by considering materiality. Details as follow: 

   (Amount In NPR) 

Finance Expenses 
Group Stand Alone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Bank Charges 4,127,001 2,906,056 4,127,001 2,906,056 

Interest on Term Loan 154,584,914 231,168,877 154,584,914 231,168,877 

Interest on Vehicle Loan 664,287 568,417 664,287 568,417 

Interest under Lease Liability 3,335,910 3,212,645 5,107,729 5,000,663 

Total 162,712,112 237,855,995 164,483,932 239,644,012 

 

4.24 Basic Earnings Per Share    

Basic Earnings per share amount has been calculated based on profit/loss attributable to ordinary 

equity shareholders of the Company. Basic earnings per share has been calculated by dividing 

profit/loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company by number of ordinary shares 

outstanding during the period.  

   (Amount In NPR) 

Earnings Per Share 

Group Standalone 

16/07/2025 15/07/2024 16/07/2025 15/07/2024 

Amount Amount Amount Amount 

Earnings after Tax 178,818,667 180,934,863  187,497,342  199,974,656 

No of Shares  15,340,910  15,340,910  15,340,910  15,340,910 

Earnings per Share  11.66   11.79  12.22  13.04 
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5 Disclosure and Additional Information 

5.1 Financial Risk Management 

The Management has overall responsibility for the Company�s risk management and internal controls 

system. The Company�s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and trade and 

other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company�s operations. 

The Company�s principal financial assets comprise investments, trade and other financial receivables 

and cash and cash equivalents that arrive directly from its operations. 
 

The Company is majorly exposed to Operational Risk, Strategic Risk, Compliance Risk and Financial 

Risk. Following is the description of various risks associated and how these financial risks are managed. 
 

Operational Risk 

Operational risk is the risk of a change in value caused by the fact that actual losses, incurred for 

inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from external events (including legal 

risk), differ from the expected losses. It can include various classes of risks, such 

as fraud, security, privacy protection, legal risks, physical (e.g. infrastructure shutdown) or 

environmental risks 
 

Some prominent operational risks for the Company along with mitigating factor are: 

 IT Security Risk 

In today�s world, use of technology is very much important. However, use of such technology is 

associated with various risks of theft, misuse of Company�s private data and impact on day- to-

day operation due to loss of data. The management is planning to mitigate the risk by 

implementing proper disaster recovery and business continuity plans, IT audit. 

 Malicious attack on the network, systems and IT Infrastructure which is mitigated by the 

management by proactively monitoring and responding timely to such unwanted activities. 

 Failure in network/ IT systems and infrastructures. For this, specific back-up and resilience policies 

are built in the Company�s network; any failures in network including those arising due to natural 

causes like pandemic or natural disasters are instantly taken care of by the experts through remote 

desktop or other various measures. 
 

Strategic Risk 

Strategic risk is the risk that failed business decisions may pose to a Company. Strategic risk is often a 

major factor in determining a Company's worth, particularly observable if the Company experiences a 

sharp decline in a short period of time. 

Various Strategic Risk related to the Company are: 

 Competition from emerging technology and services 

 Customer�s Preferences and high Expectations 

 Regulatory and legal changes 

 Turnover of senior management team 
 

The Company manages such strategic risks by identifying such factors which may affect the strategies 

of the Company, determining key performance indicators, creating process of timely reporting and 

updates of legal changes and revisiting the strategies based on changes to the environment in order 

to grasp unexpected opportunities that arise. 
 

Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 

because of change in market prices. Market prices comprise four type of risk: interest rate risk, 

currency risk, commodity price risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments 

affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and deposits. 
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1.  Interest Rate Risk 

Interest risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate 

because of changes in market interest rate. The Company�s exposure to the risk of changes in market 

interest rates relates primarily to the Company�s bank overdraft and short-term deposit. The Company 

manages its interest rate risk by negotiating with highly reputed commercial bank. 
 

2. Foreign Currency Risk 

Foreign currency risk is risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company�s exposure to the risk of changes 

is foreign exchange rates relate primarily to the Company�s operating activities (when revenue or 

expenses is denominated in a different currency from the Company functional currency). The 

Company manages its foreign currency risk by not holding the receivables and payables in foreign 

currencies for long durations.  
 

3. Commodity Price Risk 

The Company is affected by the volatility of certain commodities. Its operating activities require the 

ongoing purchases of raw materials and therefore require a continuous supply of the same. The 

Company manages this risk by purchasing material and supplies from the suppliers identified by the 

group and the Company has long term relation with the suppliers. 
 

Credit Risk  

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or 

customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating 

activities (primarily for trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with 

banks and financial institution. 
 

1. Trade receivables 

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company�s established policy, procedures and control relating 

to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of the customer is assessed, and individual credit 

limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly 

monitored. 
 

2. Cash deposit 

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions are managed by maintaining the 

balances with highly renowned banks and financial institutions only.  
 

Liquidity Risk  

The Company monitors its risk to a shortage of funds on a regular basis through cash forecast. The 

Company�s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility using bank 

overdrafts and bank loans. Access to sources of funding is sufficient. 

 

Reputational Risk 

It refers to the potential for negative publicity, public perception or uncontrollable events to have an 

adverse impact on a Company�s reputation, thereby affecting its revenue. The management has 

mitigated such risk by conducting various CSR activities, being pro-active towards customer service 

and being mindful of ethical conducts. 
 

Other Factors 

The Company is also exposed to other various risks such as political stability, changing legal and 

statutory requirements or any other hazards caused due to wastages of the Company. This risk can be 

mitigated by discussion with relevant stakeholders and forming long-term strategies. 
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5.2 Capital Management 

The Company�s objectives when managing Capital is to maintain a strong base and safeguard the 

Company�s ability to continue as going concern, so as to maintain investor, creditor and market 

confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Directors monitor and are 

determined to maintain an optimal debt-to-equity ratio that complies with debt covenants and 

regulatory requirements. 
 

For the purposes of the Company�s Capital management, Capital includes paid-up Capital and other 

reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company�s 

Capital management is to maximize the shareholder�s value. The Company manages its Capital 

structure and makes adjustment in the light of changes in economic condition and the requirements 

of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the Capital structure, the Company may adjust the 

dividend payment to shareholders, return Capital to shareholders or issue new shares. There was no 

change in Company�s approach to Capital management during the year. This risk can be mitigated by 

discussion with relevant stakeholders. 

 

5.3 Contingent Liabilities and commitment 

The Company recognizes a contingent liability in following situation:  

a. possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control 

of the entity; or  

b. a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:  

i. It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 

settle the obligation; or  

ii.The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.  

 

5.4 Related Parties Disclosures 

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Company 

if the Company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or jointly control the party or exercise 

significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where 

the Company and the parties are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or 

other entities. 

Related parties also include key management personnel defined as those persons having authority 

and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company either directly 

or indirectly. The Company has related party relationship with its significant investors, subsidiaries, 

associates if any and key management personnel.  

 

Details of Related party of Chandragiri Hills Limited are as follows: 

1. Significant Shareholders 

S No. Name of Share Holders Kitta Percentage 

1 Hem Raj Dhakal 2,943,338 19.19% 

2 Uttam Kumar Nepal 1,962,225 12.79% 

3 Chandra Prasad Dhakal 1,955,966 12.75% 

4 Ambika Prasad Paudel 898,040 5.85% 

5 Kalyan Gurung 846,113 5.52% 

6 Bhat Bhateni Super Market & Departmental Store Pvt. Ltd. 323,767 2.11% 

7 Kumar Keshar Bista 270,000 1.76% 

8 Shreevridhi Holding Company Pvt. Ltd. 238,230 1.55% 

9 Nawa Raj Nepal 216,838 1.41% 

10 Sabitri Gurung 216,195 1.41% 
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2. Subsidiaries Details 

Company Name Transaction Nature of relationship 

Multi Pokhara Development Private Limited 1,950,000 

(Rental expenses) 100 % Subsidiary Company 

Chandragiri Hills Paragliding Limited - 

 

3. Transaction with related party 

S. N List of Company Nature of transaction 

Total 

Purchases Sales 

(Inclusive 

of vat) 

(Inclusive 

of vat) 

1 IME Ltd 
Rental expenses and sales of 

service 
1,235,344 1,268,993 

2 IME Digital Solution Ltd Sales of services - 196,330 

3 IME Motors P.Ltd Sales of services - 69,300 

4 IGI Prudential Insurance Ltd. Sales of services  583,334 

5 IME Life Insurance Co. Ltd. Sales of services - 215,634 

6 IME Travels Pvt Ltd 
Vehicle Facility to guests, air 

ticket and sales of service. 
730,904 1,176,330 

7 Global IME Bank Ltd Sales of services - 1,026,111 

8 Global IME Capital Ltd RTS Fee and sales of service 115,763 340,300 

9 Ashok LT Engineering P Ltd Repair and maintenance 28,172 - 

10 
Bhatbhateni Supermarket and 

Departmental Stores P. Ltd 

Consumables purchase and 

sale of service 
6,831,231 1,274,970 

 

4. Key Managerial Personnel and their close family members 

Key Managerial Personnel of the Company: 

S.N. Name Designation 

1. Arun Pradhan Chief Executive Officer 

2. Prabindra Singh  Deputy General Manager 

3. Binayak Pokhrel Finance Head 

4. Jhalak Raj Sharma Company Secretary/ HR Head 

5. Saroj Basnet  Operation Manager � Top Station 

6. Ram Bahadur Basnet Food and Beverage Manager 

7. Jibesh Pokharel Executive Chef 

8. Pradip Lal Nakarmi Cable Car and Amusement Manager 

9. Suresh Maharjan Engineering Manager 

10. Prabhakar Khadka Head - Marketing and sales 
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5.5 Proposed Dividend and Bonus Share 

The Board of Directors, in its meeting held on Mangshir 29, 2082 BS, has proposed a 5% stock dividend 

and an additional 0.2632% cash dividend for tax purposes to its equity shareholders, amounting in 

total to NPR 80,741,632. As the proposal was made after the reporting date, it has been treated as a 

non-adjusting event in accordance with NAS 10 and has not been recognized in these financial 

statements. The proposed dividend will be distributed to shareholders upon approval at the 

forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 

The increase in paid-up capital through this stock dividend is intended to support ongoing project 

investments and to strengthen the Company�s overall risk management framework. 

 

5.6 Events after reporting date 

Subsequent to the reporting date of 32nd Ashad 2082 (16 July 2025), a major fire incident occurred on 

24 Bhadra, 2082 (09 September, 2025) during violent protest activities, causing extensive damage to 

the Company�s bottom station building and related operating facilities. As this incident arose from 

conditions that did not exist as at the reporting date, it has been classified as a non-adjusting event in 

accordance with NAS 10 � Events After the Reporting Period. There is no material impact on the 

Company�s ability to continue as a going concern as it is in operation at the date of signing of the 

financial statements. 

Accordingly, no adjustments have been made to the financial statements in respect of this incident. 

The Company is currently evaluating the extent of the damage and the potential insurance recoveries. 

The resulting financial impact will be recognized in the subsequent reporting period once the amount 

can be measured reliably. 
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Armenian Businessman Mr. Ruben 

Gregorian and his team

VIP VISIT
Honorable Shivraj Singh 

Chauhan, Union Agriculture and 

Farmers Welfare Minister, 

Government of India
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VIP VISIT
Everest Alliance Nepal 

Country Representatives 

Meet & Greet

H.E. Mr. Suwapong Sirisorn, 

Ambassador of the Royal 

Thai Embassy in Nepal

Her Excellency Dr. Danielle Meuwly 

Switzerland Embassy Nepal
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VIP VISIT
Sunil Barthwal former 

Commerce Secretary, 

Government of India.

His Holiness Swami Kailasha Nanda 

Maharaj
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Bangladesh National Kabaddi Team

VIP VISIT

Right Honourable Mr. Prakash Man 

Singh Raut, Chief Justice of Nepal
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EVENTS
Shrawan Sombar 

Bisesh Aarati

Haritalika Teej
2082

Himalayan Travel 

Mart 2025

86!^ cf}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*!÷*@



EVENTS
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EVENTS
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Notes:



Notes:



MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Arun Pradhan
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Prabindra Singh
Deputy General Manager

Mr. Binayak Pokhrel
Finance Head

Mr. Jhalak Raj Sharma
Head - Human Resource

Mr. Prabhakar Khadka
Head - Sales and Marketing

Mr. Pradip Lal Nakarmi
Operation Manager

Cable Car

Mr. Saroj Basnet
Operation Manager

Top Station

Mr. Ram Basnet
F&B Manager

Mr. Jibesh Pokharel
Executive Chef

Mr. Suresh Maharjan
Engineering Manager





CABLE CAR | BHALESHWOR MAHADEV TEMPLE |
AMUSEMENT PARK | LUXURY RESORT


